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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Shiprocket Private Limited (Formerly known as Bigfoot Retail Solutions Private
Limited)

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Shiprocket Private Limited
(Formerly known as Bigfoot Retail Solutions Private Limited) (hereinafter referred to as “the Holding
Company™), its subsidiaries (the Holding Company and its subsidiaries together referred to as “the
Group™) and its associates comprising of the consolidated Balance sheet as at March 31 2024, the
consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss and the consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year then
ended. and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of material accounting
policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the consolidated financial
statements™).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and
based on the consideration of reports of other auditors on separate financial statements and on the other
financial information of the subsidiaries and associates. the aforesaid consolidated financial statements
give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as amended (“the Act™) in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted
in India. of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group. and its associates as at March 31, 2024. their
consolidated loss and their consolidated cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing (SAs). as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the “Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements™ section of our report. We are independent of the Group and associates in
accordance with the *Code of Ethics™ issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together
with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder. and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the consolidated
financial statements.

Emphasis of Matter

Accounting for Incentive Scheme for Certain Senior Management & Reinstatement of Financial
statement — Shiprocket Private Limited (Formerly known as Bigfoot Retail Solutions Private
Limited)

As stated in note 40, we have included Emphasis of Matter paragraph in audit report on the financial
statement of company for the year ended March 31, 2024 which deseribes the impact of the adjustment
related accounting for share based expenses for incorrect cost accrual and corresponding adjustments
for in other equity. which had led to a restatement of the financial statements as at and for the year
ended March 31, 2023 and as at the April 1. 2022,

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.
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Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Director’s report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thercon,

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and. in doing so. consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent
with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed. we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information. we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

Responsibilities of Management for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of these
consolidated financial statements in terms of the requirements of the Act that give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position. consolidated financial performance and consolidated cash flows
of the Group including its associates in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted
in India. including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act
read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended specified under
section 133 of the Act. The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group and
of'its associates are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of their respective company(ies) and for preventing
and detecting frauds and other irregularities: selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies: making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent: and the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively
for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records. relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. which have been used for the purpose of
preparation of the consolidated financial statements by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company.
as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the Companies
included in the Group and of its associates are responsible for assessing the ability of their respective
company(ies) to continue as a going concern, disclosing. as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the
Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group and of its associates are
also responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process of their respective company(ies).

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if. individually or in the
aggregate. they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these consolidated financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with SAs. we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

¢ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements.
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery. intentional omissions, misrepresentations. or the
override of internal control.

*  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Holding Company has adequate internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of
such controls.

*  Lvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

*  Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and. based on the audit evidence obtained. whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group and its associates to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists. we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or. il'such disclosures are inadequate. to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group and its associates to cease to continue as a going concern.

*  Evaluate the overall presentation. structure and content of the consolidated financial statements.
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation,

*  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group and its associates of which we are the independent auditors
and whose financial information we have audited. to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit
of the financial statements of such entities included in the consolidated financial statements of
which we are the independent auditors. For the other entities included in the consolidated financial
statements. which have been audited by other auditors, such other auditors remain responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the audits carried out by them. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such other entities
included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors regarding,
among other matters. the planned scope and timing of the audit and material audit findings. including
any material deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
cthical requirements regarding independence. and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence. and where applicable. related
safeguards.

Other Matter

(a) We did not audit the financial statements and other financial information, in respect of 3
subsidiaries, whose financial statements include total assets of Rs 764.82 Mn as at March 31,2024,
and total revenues of Rs 361.45 Mn and net cash outflows of Rs 152.60 Mn for the year ended on
that date. These financial statement and other financial information have been audited by otheg
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(b)

auditors, whose financial statements, other financial information and auditor’s reports have been
furnished to us by the management.

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include unaudited financial statements and
other unaudited financial information in respect of 2 subsidiaries. whose financial statements and
other financial information reflect total assets of Rs 65.80 Mn as at March 31, 2024, and total
revenues of Rs 29.85 Mn for the year ended on that date. These unaudited financial statements and
other unaudited financial information have been furnished to us by the management. Our opinion,
in so far as it relates amounts and disclosures included in respect of these subsidiaries and associates.
and our report in terms of sub-sections (3) of Section 143 of the Act in so far as it relates to the
aforesaid subsidiaries and associates, is based solely on such unaudited financial statement and
other unaudited financial information. In our opinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us by the Management, these financial statements and other financial
information are not material to the Group.

Our opinion above on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on Other Legal and
Regulatory Requirements below. is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our
reliance on the work done and the reports of the other auditors and the financial statements and other
financial information certified by the Management.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order™). issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act. based on our audit and on
the consideration of report of the other auditors on separate financial statements and the other financial
information of the subsidiary companies and associate companies. incorporated in India, as noted in
the *Other Matter’ paragraph we give in the “Annexure 1™ a statement on the matters specified in
paragraphs 3(xxi) of the Order.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act. based on our audit and on the consideration of report of the
other auditors on separate financial statements and the other financial information of subsidiaries and
associates, as noted in the *other matter’ paragraph we report, to the extent applicable, that:

(a)

(b)

(d)

(e)

We/the other auditors whose report we have relied upon have sought and obtained all the
information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the
purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated financial statements:

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as it appears from our examination of those books. except that (a) the backup of the books of
account and other books and papers maintained in electronic mode has not been maintained on
servers physically located in India on daily basis as stated in note 44 to the financial statements
and (b) for the matters stated in the paragraph 2 (i) (vi) below on reporting under Rule 11(g).

The Consolidated Balance Sheet. the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss and the
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of
account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements:

In our opinion. the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Companies
(Accounting Standards) Rules, 2021, as amended specified under section 133 of the Act:

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company as
on March 31, 2024 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and the
reports of the statutory auditors who are appointed under Section 139 of the Act. of its subsidiary
companies and associate companies. none of the directors of the Group’s companiesand its
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(h)

(1)

associates incorporated in India is disqualified as on March 31, 2024 from being appointed as a
director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act:

The modification relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith
are as stated in paragraph (b) above on reporting under Section 143(3)(b) and paragraph 2(vi)
below on reporting under Rule 11(g)

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated
financial statements of the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies and associate
companies incorporated in India. and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate Report in “Annexure 27 to this report:

The provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V of the Act are not applicable to the Holding
Company. its subsidiaries and associates incorporated in India for the year ended March 31, 2024:

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended. in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us [and based on the consideration of
the report of the other auditors on separate financial statements as also the other financial
information of the subsidiaries and associates, as noted in the *Other matter’ paragraph:

I.  The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations on its
consolidated financial position of the Group and its associates in its consolidated financial
statements — Refer Note 33 to the consolidated financial statements:

ii.  The Group and its associates did not have any material foreseeable losses in long-term
contracts including derivative contracts during the year ended March 31. 2024:

ili.  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Holding Company. its subsidiaries and associates incorporated
in India during the year ended March 31. 2024,

iv.  a) The respective managements of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries and associate
which are companies incorporated in India whose financial statements have been audited
under the Act have represented to us and the other auditors of such subsidiaries and
associate respectively that. to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have been
advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other
sources or kind of funds) by the Holding Company or any of such subsidiaries and
associate to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
(“Intermediaries™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that
the Intermediary shall. whether. directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the respective Holding
Company or any of such subsidiaries and associate (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide
any guarantee. security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

b) The respective managements of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries and
associate which are companies incorporated in India whose financial statements have been
audited under the Act have represented to us and the other auditors of such subsidiaries
and associate respectively that. to the best of its knowledge and belief. no funds have been
received by the respective Holding Company or any of such subsidiaries and associate
from any person(s) or entity(ies). including foreign entities (“Funding Parties™), with the
understanding. whether recorded in writing or otherwise. that the Holding Company or any
of such subsidiaries and associate shall. whether. directly or indirectly, lend or invest in
other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
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Vi.

Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

¢) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in
the circumstances performed by us and that performed by the auditors of the subsidiaries
and associate which are companies incorporated in India whose financial statements have
been audited under the Act, nothing has come to our or other auditor’s notice that has
caused us or the other auditors 1o believe that the representations under sub-clause (a) and
(b) contain any material mis-statement.

No dividend has been declared or paid during the year by the Holding Company, its
subsidiaries and associate companies, incorporated in India.

Based on our examination which included test checks performed by the respective auditors
of the subsidiaries which are companies incorporated in India whose financial statements
have been audited under the Act. the Holding company and subsidiaries have used
accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording
audit trail (edit log) facility which was enabled throughout the year for all relevant
transactions recorded in the software except that. audit trail feature is not enabled for direct
changes to data when using certain priviledged / administrative access rights and audit
trail for accounting and certain related software was not enabled at the database level to
log any direct changes to the database, as described in note 45 to the consolidated financial
statements. Further, during the course of our audit. we and respective auditors of the above
referred subsidiaries did not come across any instance of audit trail feature being tampered
with in respect of other accounting software.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associatts LLP

Chartered Accountants
ICAI FirmaRegistrau

er: 101049W/E300004

pef Sﬁnjay Bachchani

Yartner

Membership Number: 400419
UDIN: 244004 19BKFRHB8303
Place of Signature: Gurugram, Haryana
Date: September 27, 2024
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Annexure 1 referred to in paragraph 1 of report on other legal and regulatory requirements

Re: Shiprocket Private Limited (Formerly known as Bigfoot Retail Solutions Private Limited) (‘the
Group’)

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the company and the books
of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the best of our
knowledge and belief, we state that:

(1) Qualifications or adverse remarks by the respective auditors in the Companies (Auditors
Report) Order (CARO) reports of the companies included in the consolidated financial
statements are.

5, Name - CIN Holding Clause number |
No. company/ of the CARO |
| subsidiary report which is
' qualified or is
adverse
None

For S.R. Batliboi & AXociates LLP
Chartered Accountangs
ICAL Fipfl regigii number: 101049W/15300004

per Salﬁa}-' Bachchani

Partner

Membership Number: 400419
UDIN: 244004 19BKFRHB8303
Place: Gurugram

Date: September 27, 2024
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ANNEXURE 2 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF Shiprocket Private Limited (Formerly
known as Bigfoot Retail Solutions Private Limited)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™)

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of Shiprocket Private Limited
(Formerly known as Bigfoot Retail Solutions Private Limited) (hereinafter referred 1o as the | lolding
Company™) as of'and for the year ended March 31, 2024, we have audited the internal financial controls
with reference to consolidated financial statements of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries (the
Holding Company and its subsidiaries together referred to as “the Group™), which are companies
incorporated in India, as of that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group. which are companies
incorporated in India, are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based
on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Holding Com pany considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI).
These responsibilities include the design. implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its
business, including adherence to the respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets. the
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records.
and the timely preparation of reliable financial information. as required under the Companies Act. 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Holding Company's internal financial controls with
reference to consolidated financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance
with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the
“Guidance Note™) and the Standards on Auditing, specified under section 143(10) of the Act. to the
extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both, issued by ICAIL. Those Standards and
the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to
consolidated financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated
cffectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
[inancial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements and their operating effectiveness.
Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists. and testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend
on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the other
auditors in terms of their reports referred to in the Other Matters paragraph below, is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to
consolidated financial statements,
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to Consolidated Financial Statements

A company's internal financial control with reference to consolidated financial statements is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. A company's internal financial control with reference to consolidated financial
statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that. in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
company: (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and
that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations
of" management and directors of the company: and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition. use. or disposition of the company's assets
that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to Consolidated Financial
Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements. including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls. material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also. projections of any evaluation
of the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements to future periods
are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance
with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion. the Group, which are companies incorporated in India, have. maintained in all material
respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements and
such internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements were operating
effectively as at March 31.2024. based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Holding Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in
the Guidance Note issued by the ICAL

Other Matters

Our report under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the internal
financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements of the Holding Company. in so far
as it relates to the 3 subsidiary. which are companies incorporated in India. is based on the corresponding
reports of the auditors of such subsidiaries. incorporated in India.

)
For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firgn Registratj

mber: 101049W/E300004

Membership Number: 400419
UDIN: 244004 19BKFRHB8303
Place of Signature: Gurugram, Haryana
Date: September 27, 2024




Shiprocket Private Limited (Formerly known as Bigfoot Retail Solutions Private Limited)
CIN: U72900DL2011PTC225614

Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024

[All amaunts in Rs. Millions, unless otherwise stated)

As at As at As at
Particulars Naotes March 31, 2024 Ma'rchAa:l,fctzs A'pn|.1,‘z£|-2}2
{ ) i

ASSETS
Non-current assets
Froperty, plant and equipment 3 267.58 194.56 82,34
Capital work in progress 3 - 49,27 -
Goodwill 4 9,153.15 10,920.57 1,098.77
Other Intangible assets 4 37.83 1,086,52 232.54
Right-of-use assets 4a 960.73 969.56 352.65
Investments in associates 5 - - 111.60
Financial assets

{l) Investments Bi(i) - 45,58 39.20

(i) Other financial assets &{v) 238568 543.21 9,893,88
Mon-current Tax Assets {net) 8 - 17.14 19.47
Other non-current asssts 9 - 2.01 11.99
Total non-current assets 12,804,897 13,839.83 11,842.44
Current assets
Inventories 7 14.72 1213 B.73
Financial assets

(i} Investments B(i) 145.92 208.19 55.04

(i) Trade receivables Biii) 1,170.59 a07.52 469.20

{iii) Cash and cash equivalants Biiy 842.86 B55.94 343,12

(iv) Bank balances other than (iil) above G{iv) 1,687.75 79.15 63,46

{v) Other financial Assets B(v) 2,293.56 7.37368 3,187.29
Current Tax Assets (net) 8 307.85 295.03 86.80
Other cument assets - 1.243.86 296,35 125.39
Total current assets 7,707.21 10,027.99 4,339.03
Total assets 20,512.18 23,867.82 16,181.47
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
Equity Share Capital 10 5B2.44 589.96 567.78
Share Consideration pursuant to Merger 41 - 0,12 012
Olher equity 10 12,278.33 16.428.81 13,323.61
Equity attributable to equity holders of the parent 12,861.77 17,018.89 13,891.51
Nen-controlling interests A14ii) - 47.69 45.29
Total equity 12,861.77 17,066.58 13,936.80
LIABILITES
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities

(i) Lease Liabilities 30 B45.75 814,78 152.05
Pravisions 13 53.06 §5.81 27.07
Total non-current liabilities 898.81 870.59 178,142
Currant liabilities
Financial liabilities

(i) Borrowings 12{(i) 2.132.75 1,718.08 3.22

(ii) Lease Liabilities 30 180.65 160.06 208.58

(iii) Trade payables 12(ii)

(&) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises B8.82 12278 26.04
(b) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 1.821.42 1,865.61 877.42

{iv) Other Financial Liabilities 12(iii) 1,179.22 1,062.74 383.50
Provisions 13 90.83 68,87 26.61
Other current liabilities 14 1,148.11 912.41 540.18
Total current liabilities 6,751.60 5,930.65 2,065.55
Total equity and liabilities 20,512.18 23,867.82 16,181.47

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the consolidated financial statements. 1-47

* Refer note 40

As per our report of even date Y
For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LI
Chartered Accountants

ICAl Firm Registration No. 1

Membership Mo. 400418

Flace : Gurugram
Date : September 27, 2024

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Shiprocket Private Limited
[Formerly known as Bigfoot Retail Solutions Private Limited)

Saahil Goel

Managing Director and
Chief Executive Officer
DIN: 05106685

Deepa Kapoor

Company Secretary
PAN: BCTPKE581Q

Flace . Gurugram
Date . September 27, 2024

o=
Gautam Kaboor
Director

DIN: 03595874
yrveina
TR .

Chief Financial Officer
PAN: ACAPTOS41M




Shiprocket Private Limited (Formerly known as Bigfoot Retail Solutions Private Limited)
CIN: U72800DL2011PTC225614

Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2024

{All amounts in Rs. Millions, unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended

For the year ended
Particulars Notes March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
(restated*)
Income
Revenue from Operations 15 13,158.76 10,888.27
Other income 16 418.57 378.49
Total income (I} 13,578.33 11,266.76
Expenses
Cost of Merchant Solutions 17 10,070.37 8,344.77
Purchase of traded goods 18 55.67 41.58
Changes in inventories of traded goods 19 (2.59) (7.79)
Employee benefits expense 20 4,307.91 3,437.65
Finance cost 23 233.14 98.28
Depreciation and amortisation expense 21 759.78 413.85
Other expenses 22 1,662.07 1,897.02
Total Expenses (II) 17,086.35 14,225.36
{Loss)/Profit before exceptional items and tax (llI=I-I) (3,508.02) (2,958.60)
Exceptional items (IV) 244 (2,443.79) (631.58)
(Loss)iProfit before tax (V=IlI+1V) (5,951.81) (3,590.17)
Tax expense 32
Current tax - -
Adjustment of tax relating to earlier periods - 291
Deferred tax - -
Total Tax Expense (V1) - 2,91
(Loss)/Profit for the year (VII=V-V|) (5,951.81) (3,593.08)
Other Comprehensive Income/(Loss): 24.2
(a) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods:

(i) Re-measurement (loss)/gain on defined benefit plans 5.31 1.46

(i) Gain/(loss) on sale of equity & preference instruments carrfed at FVTOCI 0.50 (19.90)

(iii) Changes in fair value of equity & preference instruments carried at FWYTOCI (52.98) (54.75)

(b) Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods:

(i) Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations (0.34) (2.97)
Total Other Comprehensive Incomel/(Loss) for the year (VIll = ath) (47.51) (76.186)
Total Comprehensive Income/({Loss) for the year (5,999.32) (3,669.24)
Attributable to:

Equity Holders of the parent (5,971.64) (3,444.27)

Non-controlling interests (27.68) {224.87)

(Loss)/Earnings per equity share: 25

Basic EPS (in Rs.) (2,.813.47) {1,706.89)

Diluted EPS (in Rs.) (2,813.47) {1,706.89)
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the consclidated financial st t 1-47

* Refer note 40

As per our report of even date \l
For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants

ICAl Firm Registration No. 10

Membership No, 400418

Place : Gurugram
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Shiprocket Private Limited (Formerly known as Bigfoot Retail Solutions Private Limited)

CIN: UT2900DL2011PTC225614
Consolidated Statement of Cash flow for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts in Rs. Millions, unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended

For the year ended

Particulars March 31, 2024 Ma'rch A, zc;zs

A} Operating Activities
(Loss)/Profit before Tax (5,851.81) (3,590.17)
Adjustment to reconcile {loss)/profit before tax o net cash flows
Depreciation of Property, plant and eguipment 217.38 85.24
Provision for impairment in value of Goadwill 1,767.42 "
Amortisation of intangible assels 307,30 171.40
Amortisationfimpairment of intangible assets 753.15 519.98
Depreciation of right-of-use aszets 23510 167.21
Provision for Doubtful Debts (net) 197.73 280.89
Provision for Doubtful Recoverables 117.42 12018
Recoverables written off 426 -
Provision for impairment in value of Investment in associate - 111.60
Provision for impairment of Amount Recoverabla 15.56 -
Foreign Exchange Fluctuations loss Hgain) (Net) 4.08 0.31
Share based payment expense 1,926.48 910.09
Loss/{Profit) on sale of investment in subsidianes (92,34 -
Interest expense on Bank Overdraft 131.82 46,22
Interest on lease liability 9B.30 48.70
Fair value {gain) /loss on Investment at fair value through profit or loss (9.42) 1.92
Loss/(Gain) on sale of Property, Plant and Equipment 245 {0.02)
Property, Plant and Equipment and Infangible assets written off - 0.21
Loss/{3ain) on medificationfermination of lease contracts {1561} -
Interest Income on Bank Deposits {354.71) (362.41)
Interest Income on Income tax refund (11.24) (2.78)
Interest income on unwinding of discount on security deposits paid 5.33) (3.08)
Operating (Loss)/Profit before working capital changes (661.92) {1,503.49)
Movements in working capital:
(Increase)/Decrease in Inventories (2.59) (3.42)
(Increase)/Decrease in Trade and other receivables (460.80) (419.65)
(Increase)/Decrease in Other financial assets (318.35) {168.80)
(Increase)/Decrease in Other Assels (947.45) 185.24)
Increase/(Decrease} in Trade Payables 35.88 408.92
Ir f{Decrease) in Other fi ial liabilities {79.13) 278.78
Increasel{Decrease) in other liabililies 23570 25561
Increase/{Decrease) in Provisions 2422 43.57
Cash flow f ljused in) op i {2,176.44) {1,202.72)
Income taxes paid (net) 15.57 (175.85)
Net cash flows (used in)/from operating activities (A) {2,159.87) {1,379.57)

B} Investing Activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (including other intangible assets) (net} (243.38) (313.16)
FPayment towards acquisition of stake in Subsidiaries - (6.971.13)
Proceeds from sale of Investment in subsidiaries 0.27 -
Advance Paid for acquisition of shares in subsidiaries 300.00 (300.00)
Proceeds from sale of Investment other than in Subsidiaries and Associate 0.50 -
Payment towards acquisition of stake in entities other than in Subsidisries and Associale (5.09) -
Proceeds from sale of mutual fund investments (net) 7188 (82,40}
Interest Receivad on Bank Deposits 429.04 284.02
Investment in Bank deposits (net) (having maturity of mere than 3 months) 1.504.58 5.969.29
Net cash flows fromi{used in) Investing Activities (B) 2,056,70 (1,413.38)

C) Financing Activities
Proceeds from issue of share capital 7.M 21.23
Proceeds from Securities premium (net off iransaction cost) on issue of share capital 918.08 2.573.44
Proceeds from Bank Overdratt (net) 414,67 1.714.86
Payment towards acquisition of Non-contralling interest (B46.02) (881.78)
Repayment of lease liability (174.04) {117.31)
Interest Paid on lease liability {28.30) (48.70)
Interest Paid on Bank Overdrait {131.82) (46.22)
Net cash flows from Financing Activities (C) 90.19 3.114.52




Shiprocket Private Limited (Formerly known as Bigfoot Retail Solutions Private Limited)
CIN: U72900DL2011PTC226614

Consolidated Statement of Cash flow for the year ended March 31, 2024

{All amounts in Rs, Millicns, unless otherwise stated)

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents [A+B+C) {12.97} 321.57
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 855.93 343.12
Cash and cash equivalents on account of acquisition - 191,24
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of year [Refer note B(iii)] 842.96 B55.93
Components of cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand - 0.00
With banks - on current account 150.80 393.24
With banks - on current account for Amount payable, collected on behalf of the customers 682,36 450,64
Deposits with original maturity of less than three manths - 12.04
Total cash and cash equivalents [Refer note &(jii)] 2842.96 855.93

The sccompanying netes form an integral part of the i d financial stat t 1-47

* Refer Note 40

As per our report of even date o

For 5.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Shiprocket Private Limited
{Formerly known as Bigfoot Retail Soluti Private Limited)

Chartered Accoyntants
ICAl Firm Regiftfation No. 101048W,
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Date : September 27, 2024
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Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer
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Date - September 27, 2024
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Shiprocket Private Limited (Formerly known as Bigfoot Retail Solutions Private Limited)
CIN: U72800DL2011PTC225614
Notes to Consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

(All amounts in Rs. Millions, unless otherwise stated)

241

22

a)

Corporate Information

The Consclidated Financial Statements comprise financial statements of "Shiprocket Private Limited (formerly known as Bigfoot Retail Solutions Private Limited)”
("the Holding Company" or "The Company’), its subsidiaries and its associate (collectively referred to as "the Group”) for the year ended March 31, 2024,
Shiprocket Private Limited {formerdy known as Bigfoot Retail Solutions Private Limited) is a private limited company incorporated on September 28, 2011, under
the relevant provisions of erstwhile Companies Act, 1956. Shiprocket is an e-commerce enablement platform powering direct commerce. Shiprocket helps small
businesses, retail brands, direct-to-consumer merchants, and social commerce retailers scale through its technology stack. The Group is also engaged in the
business of analytics, marketing automation and personalization senvices for ecommerce and Retail companies. It runs analytics on behaviour and transactional
data and utilise that data for providing marketing or analysis services to its clients.

The Consdlidated financial statements have been approved by the Board of Directors on September 27, 2024,

Material accounting policies

This note provides a list of the material accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements. These policies have been
consistently applied to all the years presented, unless olherwise stated.

Basis of preparation

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of Indian Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of
the Companies Act 2013 ("the Act’), read with of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended and p tation requirements of
Division Il of Schedule [ll to the Companies Act, 2013, (Ind AS compliant Schedule 1Il), as applicable to the consolidated financial statements.

These consclidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention on the accrual basis except certain financial instrument which
are measured at fair values, wherever applicable, at the end of each reporting periad, as explained in the accounting policies below.

This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements. These policies have been
consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees and all amounts disclosed in the consdlidated financial statements and noles have been
rounded off to the nearest millions, within two decimals, unless otherwise stated.

Summary of material accounting policies
Basis of consolidation

(i) The Group consclidates all entities which are controlled by it. The Group control an entity when it has:

- Power over the investee (i.e. existing rights that give it the current ability fo direct the relevant activities of the entity)

- Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the entity and

- The abllity to use its power over the entity to affect its returns

The Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:

- The contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee

- Rights arising from other contractual arrangements

- The Group's voting rights and potential voting rights

- The size of the Group's holding of voting rights relative to the size and dispersion of the holdings of the other voting rights holders

- Any additional facts and circumstances that indicate that the Company has, or does nat have, the current ability to direct the relevant activities at the time that
decisions need to be made, including voting pattems at previous shareholders’ meetings.

The Group re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three elements of
control. Entities controlled by the group are consclidated from the date of control commences until the date of ceases. Assets, liabilities, income and expenses of
a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the financial statements from the date the Group gains control until the date the Group
ceases to control the subsidiary.

The conselidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the parent, its subsidiary and associate companies.

Details of subsidiaries and associate, which are included in consclidated financial statements are as follows:

Fropatiiie Slnelship Proportion of Voting Power

Name of the entity Country of Incorporation Interest

2023-24 2022-23 2023-24 2022-23
Shiprocket Pte Lid. Singapore 100% 100% 100% 100%
Swifily Commerce Tech Private Limited (formerly known ;
as Wigzo Technologies Private Limiled) lostin i 79207 b TR20%
Fickrr Technologies Private Limited India 96.72% 90.15% 96.72% 80.15%
Shiprocket Omuni Private Limited (formery known as| i
Anvind Internet Limited) India 100% 100% 100% 100%
Shiprocket Merchant App Private Limited India 100% 0% 100% 0%
Shiprocket Inc United States of America 100% 0% 100% 0%
Logibricks Technologies Private Limited India 28.14% 28.14% 28.14% 28.14%




Shiprocket Private Limited (Formerly known as Bigfoot Retail Solutions Private Limited)
CIN: U72900DL2011PTC225614

Motes to Consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

(All amounts in Rs. Millions, unless otherwise stated)

b)

Censolidated Financial statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies for like transactions and other events in similar circumstances. If an entity of
the group uses accounting policies other than those adopted in the consolidated financial statements for like transactions and events in similar circumstances,
appropriate adjustments are made to that group enfity financial information in preparing the consclidated financial statements to ensure conformity with the
Group's accounting policies.

Mon-controlling interests in subsidiaries are identified separately from the Group's equity therein. Those interests of noncentrelling shareholders that are present
ownership interests entitling their holders to a proportionate share of net assets upon liquidation may initially be measured at fair value or at the non-controlling
interests' proportionate share of the fair value of the acquiree's identifiable net assets. The choice of measurement is made on an acquisition-by-acquisition
basis. Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount of non-controlling interests is the amount of those interests at initial recognition plus the non-controlling
interests' share of subsequent changes in equity.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are aftributed fo the owners of the Company and to the non-contrelling interests, Total
comprehensive income of the subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance. Changes in the Group's interests in subsidiaries that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions,
The carrying amount of the Group's interests and the non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any
difference between the amount by which the non- controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or received is recognised directly
in equity and attributed to the owners of the Company.

(i) Associate: Associate is the entity over which the group has significant influence but not control or joint control. This is generally the case where the group
holds between 20% and 50% of the voting rights, Investments in associate is accounted for using the equity method of accounting, after initially being recognised
at cost,

Equity method : Under the equity method of accounting, the investments are inifially recognised at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the group’s share of
the post-acquisition profits or losses of the investee in profit and loss, and the group's share of other comprehensive income of the investee in other
comprehensive income. Dividends received or receivable from associates and joint ventures are recognised as a reduction in the carrying amount of the
investment.

When the group's share of losses in an equity-accounted investment equals or exceeds its interest in the entity, including any other unsecured long-term
receivables, the group does not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the other entity.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the group and its associates are eliminated to the extent of the group's interest in these entities. Unrealised losses are
also eliminated unless the fransaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred, Accounting policies of equity accounted investees have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the group, The carrying amaount of equity accounted investments are tested for
impairment.

Transactions eliminated on consolid

Intragroup balances and transactions between members (including subsidiaries and silos) of the Group are eliminated. Unrealised profits and losses arising on
intragroup transactions on items of property, plant and equipment and inventory acquired from other group entities are also eliminated,

Consolidation procedure:

(a) Combine like items of assets, liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows of the parent with those of its subsidiaries. For this purpose, income and
expenses of the subsidiary are based on the amounts of the assets and liabilities recognized in the consclidated Financial Statements at the acquisition date.

(b) Offset (eliminate) the carrying amount of the parent's investment in each subsidiary and the parent's portion of equity of each subsidiary. Business
combinations policy explains how to account for any related goodwill.

{c} Eliminate in full intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between entities of the group (profits or
losses resulting from intragroup transactions that are recognized in assets, such as inventory and property plant & equipments, are eliminated in full).

Business acquisition and Goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition methad or pooling of interest method. The cost of an acquisition is measured as the aggregate of
the consideration transferred measured at acquisition date fair value and the amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree, For each business
combination, the Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling interests in the acquiree at fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’'s
identifiable net assets,

The Group determines that it has acquired a business when the acguired set of aclivilies and assets include an input and a substantive process that together
significantly contribute to the ability to create outputs. The acquired process is considered substantive if it is critical to the ability to continue producing outputs,
and the inputs acquired include an organised workforce with the necessary skills, knowledge, or experience to perform that process or it significantly contributes
to the ability to continue producing outputs and is considered unigue or scarce or cannot be replaced without significant cost, effort, or delay in the ability to
continue producing outputs.

Acquisition method

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account for all business combinations. The consideration transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary comprises
the:

(i) fair values of the assets transferred;

(i) liabilities incurred e the former owners of the acquired business;

{iii) equity interests issued by the Group; and

(iv) fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement.

The excess of the

(i} consideration transferred;

(i) amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquired entity, and

(iii) acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest in the acquired entity
over the fair value of the net identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed is recaorded as goodwill. If those amounts are less than the fair value of the net
identifiable assets of the business acquired, the difference is recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity as capital reserve provided
there is clear evidence of the underlying reasons for classifying the business combination as a bargain purchase.
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c)

d)

e)

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a
business combinalion is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Companies cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the acquiree are assigned to those units. A cash generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested
for impairment annually, or more frequently when there is an indication that the unit may be impaired.

Pooling of Interest method

Ind AS 103, Business Combinations, prescribes significantly different accounting for business combinations which are not under common control and those under
common contral. Business combinations involving entities or businesses under common control shall be accounted for using the pooling of interest method.

The pocling of interest methed is considered to involve the following:

i) The assets and liabilities of the combining entities are reflected at their carrying amounts.

ii) No adjustments are made 1o reflect fair values or recognize any new assets or liahilities. The only adjustments that are made are fo harmonies accounting
policies,

iii) The financial informatien in respect of prior years should be restated as if the business combination had occurred from the beginning of the preceding year in
the consolidated financial statements, irrespective of the actual date of the business combination.

iv) The identity of the reserves has been preserved and appear in the financial information of the iransferee in the same form in which they appeared in the
financial information of the transferor.

v) The difference, if any, between the consideration and the amount of share capital of the acquired entity is transferred to capital reserve,

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the principles of Ind AS requires the management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that effect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent liahilities, at the end of the reporting period.
Although these estimates are based on the management's best knowledge of current events and actions, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates
could result in the outcomes requiring a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets or liabilities in future periods.

The estimates and underlying assumplions are reviewed on an ongeing basis, Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the
estimate is revised if the revision affects only thal period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

In paricular, information about the significant areas of estimation, uncertainty and critical judgements in applying accounting policies that have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the consalidated financial statements are disclosed in note No, 26,

Current versus Non-current classification

The Group presents assets and liabilifies in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification. An asset is treated as current when it is:
i} Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

ii) Held primarily for the purpose of trading

iii) It is expected to be realised within twelve maonths after the reporting period, or

iv) Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporiing period,

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:

ij It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

ii) Held primarily for the purpose of trading

iii) It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

iv) There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

The Group classifies all other liabilities as non-current.
The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents, The Group has identified
twelve months as its operating cycle,

Foreign Currencies

Items included in the financial statements of each of the Group's entities are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the
entity operates ('the functional currency'). The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupee (Rs.), which is the Group's presentation currency.

Transactions and balances
Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded in the functional currency spot rates at the date the transaction first qualifies for recognition, However, for
practical reasons, the Group uses an average rate if the average approximates the exchange rates at the date of the transaction.

Menetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency spol rates of exchange at the reporting date.

Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in profit and loss with the exception of the following:

i) In the financial statements that include the foreign operation and the reporting entity (e.g., financial statements when the foreign operation is a branch), such
exchange differences are recognised initially in OCI. These exchange differences are reclassified from equity to profit and loss on disposal of the net investment.
i) Tax charges and credits altributable to exchange differences on those monetary items are also recorded in OCI.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial
transactions. Non-monetary ifems measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is
determined. The gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on the
change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on items whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in OCI or profit or |ass are also recognised in OCI
or profit or loss, respectively.
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g}

Foreign subsidiaries

The results and financial position of foreign operations (none of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional currency different
from the presentation currency are translated into the presentation currency as follows:

- assets and liabilities are translated at the closing rate at the date of that balance sheet

- income and expenses are translated at average exchange rates (unless this is not a reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on
the iransaction dates, in which case income and expenses are translated at the dates of the transactions), and

- All resulting exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive income.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures financial instruments {recorded af fair value through P&L or OCI) at fair value at each balance sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid 1o transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the assat or transfer the liability takes place either:

i} In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

ii} In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability The principal or the most advantageous market must be
accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or
liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest,

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest
and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the
use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as
follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

i) Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

ii) Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly observable,

iii) Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is uncbservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether transfers have occurred between
levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole} at the end of
each reporting period.

External valuers are involved for valuation of significant assets and liabilities. Involvement of external valuers is decided on the basis of nature of transaction and
complexity invelved, Selection criteria include market knowledge, reputation, independence and whether professional standards are maintained.

At each reporting date, the finance team analy the mo ts in the values of assets and liabilities which are required to be remeasured or re-assessed as
per the Group's accounting policies, For this analysis, the team verifies the major inputs applied in the latest valuation by agreeing the information in the valuation
computation to contracts and other relevant documents. A change in fair value of assets and liabilities is also compared with relevant external sources to
determine whether the change is reasonable.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Group has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the
asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above,

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment loss, if any, Such cost includes the cost of
replacing part of the plant and equipment. When significant pars of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group depreciates them
separately based on their specific useful lives. Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the plant and
equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in profit and loss as incurred.

Capital work in progress is stated at cost, net of accumulated impairment loss, if any.

On fransition to Ind AS, the Group has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its property, plant and equipment recognised as at April 1, 2021
measured as per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as the deemed cost of the property, plant and equipment. Depreciation on all property plant and
equipment are provided on a written down value based on the estimated useful life of the asse!, which is as follows:

Category of asset Useful Lives (Years)
Office Equipment 5

Furniture and Fixtures 10

Computers 3

Mobkiles 5

Plant and Machinery 10

Electrical Installations 10

Leasehold improvements are amortised over life based on lease period

The management has eslimated the useful lives and residual values of all property, plant and equipment and adopted useful lives based on management's
technical assessment of their respective economic useful lives. The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment
are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted praspectively, if appropriate.

Depreciation on the assets purchased during the year is provided on pro rata basis from the date of purchase of the assets, Individual assets costing less than
Rs. 5,000 are fully depreciated in the year of purchase.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset) is included in the income statement when the asset is derecoariiseg.
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h)

Intangible assets

Goodwill represents the cost of acquired business as established at the date of acquisition of the business in excess of the acquirer's interest in the net fair value
of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities less accumulated impairment losses, if any. Goodwill is tested for impairment annually or when
events or circumstances indicate that the implied fair value of goodwill is less than the carrying amount.

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in 2 business combination is their fair
value at the date of acquisition,

Following inifial recognition, Intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, Internally generated
intangibles, excluding capitalised development costs, are not capitalised and the related expenditure is reflected in profit or loss in the year in which the
expendilure is incurred.,

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite.

Intangible assets (ather than those acquired in business combination) with finite lives are amortised on a straight line basis over the estimated useful economic
life being 3 years. All Intangible assets (other than goodwill) are assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be
impaired, The amortisation year and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed st least at the end of each reporting year.
Changes in the expecied useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are considered to modify the
amortisation year or method, as appropriale, and are treated as changes in accounting estimales. The amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives
is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit and loss unless such expenditure forms part of carrying value of ancther asset.

An intangible asset is derecognised upon disposal (i.e., at the date the recipient obtains control) or when no fulure economic benefits are expected from its use or
disposal. Any gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

Intangible assets acquired in business combination, include technology platform, Customer relationship and non-compete which are amortised on a straight line
basis over their estimated useful life which is as follows:

MNature of asset Useful Lives (Years)
Technelogy platform 7

Non Compete fee 2

Customer relationships 7

Leases

On initial application of Ind AS 116, the Group has adopted modified retrospective approach and has recognised Right of use asset and lease liability on initial
application at the present value of the remaining lease payments, discounted using the Group’s incremential borrowing rate at as at April 1, 2021,

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified
asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee
The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. The Group
recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

i} Right of use assets

The Group recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the underying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are
measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of
right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement
date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assels are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful
lives of the assets.

“If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group at the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is
calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset,

The right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment. Refer to the accounting policies in section (r) Impairment of non-financial assets."

ii) Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Group recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value of lease payments to be made over the lease term.
The lease payments include fixed payments (including in substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend
on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase
option reasenably certain to be exercised by the Group and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Group exercising the
oplion to terminate. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as expenses (unless they are incurred to produce
inventories) in the period in which the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date because the interest rate
implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of lease lizbilities is increased 1o reflect the accretion of interest and
reduced for the lease payments made, In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a
change in the lease payments (e.g., changes to future payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine such lease payments) or a change
in the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

iif) Short-term leases

The Group applies the shor-term lease recognition exemption to its properies (i.e., those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the
commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). Lease payments on shori-term leases are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis aver the
lease term.
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Inventories

Inventories comprise of mainly packaging material which are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost includes the cost of purchase, duties, taxes
(other than those recoverable from tax authorities) and other cost incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Cost is determined
on first in first out basis.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and those necessary to make the sale,

Revenue recognition

The Group's revenue primarily stems from its innovative merchant solutions deeply rooted in cutting-edge technology. These merchant solutions revolve around
shipping, fulfilment and conversion technology, serving as a bridge connecting retailers, carriers, and consumers on both national and international frants, The
Group's advanced technology plays a pivotal role in powering shipping and fulfilment for SMEs, D2C retailers, and social commerce sellers, while also offering a
comprehensive technology stack for retailers to seamlessly integrate their shopping websites or their other channels for efficient inventory and order
management.

Within the realm of merchant solutions, the Group generates revenue through a range of technology-driven services. This includes one-time setup fees,
subscription charges, platiorm fees and value-added services, as well as revenue derived from shipping and logistics solutions, payment management, and state-
of-the-art fulfilment solutions. The Group’s principal method of charging its revenue is on a pay-for-use model i.e. the Group monetises its products or services on
a perdransaction basis. These technology-driven services are strategically designed to empower and optimize merchants' use of the tech-based platform,
ultimately constituting a significant portion of the Group's overall revenue.

Arrangements with merchants do not provide the merchants with the right to take possession of the software supporting the Group's hosting platform at any time
and are therefore accounted for as service contracts. The Group recognizes revenue o depict the transfer of promised senvices to its customers in an amount
that reflects the consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for those senvices by applying the following steps:

+Identify the contract with a customer

+Identify the performance obligations in the contract

*Determine the transaction price.

+Allocate the transaction price and

-Recognize revenue when, or as, the Group satisfies a performance cbligation,

The Group follows the guidance provided in IND AS 115 Revenue from Contracts with Customers, for determining whether the Group is the principal or an agent
in arrangements with customers that involve another party that contribuies to providing a specified service to a customer. In these instances, the Group
determines whether it has promised to provide the specified service itself (as principal) or to arrange for the specified service to be provided by ancther party (as
an agent). This determination depends on the facts and circumstances of each arrangement.

GST collected from merchants and remitted to government authorities are excluded from revenue.

The Group determines the price for each performance obligation based on observable consolidated sefling prices. consolidated selling prices are determined
considering pricing objectives, market conditions, discounting practices, transaction size, customer demographics, geography, price lists, and go-to-market
strategy. This determination involves management consultation and approval. Changes in go-to-market strategies may lead to adjustments in consolidated
selling prices. Payment is generally received upen invoicing, with payment terms varying by contract type but usually requiring payment within 30 days of the
invoice date. The Group also allows its merchants to maintain advances. The contracts do not involve significant financing components when there are timing
differences between revenue recognition, inveicing, and payment.

Sale of goods

Revenue from sale of goods is recognized at the point in time when control of the asset is transferred to the customer, generally on delivery of the goods. The
Group considers whether there are other promises in the contract that are separate performance obligations to which a portion of the transaction price needs to
be aliocated. In determining the transaction price for the sale of goods, the Group caonsiders the effects of variable consideration, the existence of significant
financing components, noncash consideration, and consideration payable to the customers (if any).

Dividend
Dividend income is recognized when the Group's right to receive dividend is established by the reporting date.

Interest
Interest income is recognized when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest
income is recognized using the effective interest method.

Contract balances
The Policy for Contract balances i.e. contract assets, trade receivables and contract liabilities is as follows:

Contract assets

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for services transferred to the customer (which consist of unbilled revenue). If the Group performs by
transferring services to a customer before the customer pays consideration or before payment is due, a contract asset is recognised for the earned consideration
that is unconditional,

Trade receivables
A receivable represents the Group's right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional (.., only the passage of time is required before payment of the
consideration is due). Refer to accounting policies of financial assets in financial instruments — initial recognition and subsequent measurement.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is the cbligation to transfer services 1o a customer for which the Group has received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from
the customer. If a customer pays consideration before the Group transfers services to the customer, a contract liability is recognised when the payment is made
or the payment is due (whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Group performs under the contract.

Employee benefits

Provident fund & National Pension Scheme
Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund and national pension scheme ( NPS) is a defined contribution scheme, The Group has no cbligation, other than
the contribution payable to the provident fund/NPS. The Group recognizes contribution payable to the provident fund scheme/NPS as an expense, when an
employee renders the related service. If the contribution payable to the scheme for service received before the balance sheet date exceeds the contribution
already paid, the deficit payable to the scheme is recognized as a liability after deducting the contribution already paid. If the contribution already paid exceeds the
contribution due for services received before the balance sheet date, then excess is recognized as an asset to the extent that the prep i d to, for
example, a reduction in future payment or a cash refund,
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Gratuity

Gratuity liability is a defined benefit obligation and is provided for on the basis of an actuarial valuation on projecied unit credit method made at the end of each
financial year,

Remeasurements, comprising of aciuarial gains and losses, excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefil liability are recognised
immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OCI in the year in which they occur. Remeasurements are not
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

Past service costs are recognised in profit and loss on the eardier of:

i} The date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and

i) The date that the Group recognises related restructuring costs

Met interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability. The Group recognises the following changes in the net defined benefit
obligation as an expense in the statement of profit and loss:

i} Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on curtailments and non-routine settlements; and

i} Net interest expense

Leave encashment

Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilized within the next 12 months, is treated as short-term employee benefit. The Group measures the expected cost
of such absences as the additional amount that it expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting date. The Group
recognizes expected cost of short-term employee benefit as an expense, when an employee renders the related service,

Short-term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non monetary benefits that are expected to be settled whally within 12 months after the end of the period in which the
employees render the related service are recognized in respect of employee service up to the end of the reporling pericd and are measured at the amount
expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled, The liabilities are presented as current employee benefit obligations in the balance sheet.

Taxes

Current income tax

Current income {ax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities in accordance with the
Income Tax Act, 1961 and the Income Computation and Disclosure Standards ("ICDS") enacted in India by using tax rates and tax laws that are enacted or
substantively enacted, at the reporling date. Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit and loss is recognised outside profit and loss (either in
other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.. Advance
taxes and provisions for current income taxes are presented in the balance sheet after off-setting advance tax paid and income tax provision arising in the same
tax jurisdiction and where the relevant tax paying units intends to settle the asset and liability on a net basis.

Deferred taxes
Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial
reporting purposes at the reporting date. Deferred 1ax liabiliies are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

i} In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and associates, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foresesable future.

Deferred tax asseis are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credils and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax
assels are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward
of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

i} When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting prefit nor taxable profit and loss

ii} In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and associates, deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent
that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against which the terporary differences
can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit
will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed al each reporting date and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on
tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date,

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit and loss Is recognised outside profit and loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred
tax items are recognised in correlation to the underying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax lisbilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets agsinst current tax liabilities and the
deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.
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o)

p)

q)

Share based payments

Employees of the Group receive remuneration in the form of share-based payments, whereby employees render services as consideration for equity instruments
(equity-seftled transactions).

The cost of equity-setiled transactions is determined by the fair value at the date when the grant is made using an appropriate valuation model.

That cost is recognised, together with a corresponding increase in share-based payment (SBP) reserves in equity, over the year in which the performance and/or
service conditions are fulfilled in employee benefits expense. The cumulative expense recognised for equity-setiled transactions at each reporting date until the
vesting date reflects the exient to which the vesting year has expired and the Group's best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest.
The statement of profit and loss expense or credit for a year represents the movement in cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning and end of that year
and is recognised in employee benefits expense.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not taken into account when determining the grant date fair value of awards, but the likelihood of the
conditions being met is assessed as part of the Group's best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. Market performance conditions
are reflected within the grant date fair value. Any other conditions attached to an award, but without an associated service requirement, are considered to be non-
vesting conditions. Nonvesting conditions are reflected in the fair value of an award and lead to an immediate expensing of an award unless there are also
service and/or performance conditions.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market performance and/or service conditions have not been met. Where awards
include a market or non-vesting condition, the transactions are treated as vested irrespective of whether the market or non-vesting condition is satisfied, provided
that all other performance and/or service conditions are satisfied.

When the terms of an equity-setiled award are modified, the minimum expense recognised is the expense had the terms had not been modified, if the original
terms of the award are met, An additional expense is recognised for any modification that increases the total fair value of the share-based payment transaction,
or is otherwise beneficial to the employee as measured at the date of modification,

For cancelled options, the payment made to the employee shall be accounted for as a deduction from equity, except to the extent that the payment exceeds the
fair value of the equity instruments of the Group, measured at the cancellation date, Any such excess from the fair value of equity instrument shall be recognised
as an expense.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional share dilution in the computation of diluted earnings per share,

Segment reporting

In accordance with Ind AS 108, Segment Reporting, Segments are dentified based on the manner in which the Chief Operating Decision Maker (‘{CODM)
decides about resource allocafion and reviews performance. Segment results that are reported to the CODM include items directly attributable to a segment as
well as those that can be allocated on a reasonable basis.

The Group has identified only one reportable business segment as it deals mainly in merchant solutions.

Earning per share

Basic eamings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit and loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders (after deducting preference dividends
and attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of equity and compulserily convertible preference shares outstanding during the period. For the purpose
of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit and loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares
outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares,

Provisions and Contingent liabilities

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event and it is probable that an outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. The expense
relating to a provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss net of any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific 1o the
liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of lime is recognised as a finance cost.

Contingent liabilities

Contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-sccurrence of
one are more uncertain future events not whelly within the control of the Group, or is a present obligation that arises from past event but is not recognised
because either it is net probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to seltle the obligation, or a reliable estimate of the
amount of the obligation cannot be made. Contingent liabilities are disclosed and not recognised.
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f)

Financial instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.
i) Financial assets

The Group classified its financial assets in the following measurement categories -
* Those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive income or through profit & loss)
* Those measured at amortized cost

Initial recognition and measurement :

Financial assets are initially measured at fair value except for Trade receivables which are initially measured at transaction price. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets (other than financial assets at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the
fair value of the financial assets, as appropriate, on initial recognition.

Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Subsequent measurement :

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in three categories:
(i) At amortized cost

{ii} At fair value through profit or loss ("FVTPL"}

{iii) At fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI")- Equity Instruments

At amortized cost

A 'debt instrument’ is measured at the amortized cost if the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash
flows and the asset's contractual cash flows represent Sole Payment of Principal and Interest ("SPPI") This category is the most relevant 1o the Group. After initial
measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the elective interest rate ("EIR") method. Amortized cost is calculated by
taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. EIR is the rate that exactly discount the
estimated future cash receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate to the gross carrying amount of financial
assets. When calculating the EIR the Group estimate the expected cash flow by considering all contractual terms of the financial instruments. The EIR
amortization is included in finance income in the profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognized in the profit or loss, This category generally
applies to trade and other receivables,

At FVTOCI

A financial assets is subsequently measured at FVTOCI if it is held within a business modal whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows
and selling financial assets and contractual terms of the financial assels give rise on specified date to cash flows that are SPPI on the principal amount
outstanding. All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. The Group has made an irrevocable election to present in other
comprehensive income all subsequent changes in the fair value. The Group makes such election on an instrument-by-instrument basis. The classification is
made on initial recognition and is irrevocable. If the Group decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOC!, then all fair value changes on the instrument,
excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCI. There is no recycling of the amounts from OCI to profit and loss, even on sale of investment. However, the Group
may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes
recognized in the Profit and loss.

ALFVTPL
FVTPL is a residual category. Any financial instrument, which does not meet the criteria for amorlized cost or FYTOCI, is classified as at FVTPL

Derecognition
The Group derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire or it transfers the financial asset and the
transfer qualifies for derecognition under Ind AS 109,

Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Group applies expected credit losses ("ECL") model for measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the following
financial asset and credit risk exposure

* Financial assets measured at amortized cost;

+ Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI);

The Group follows “simplified approach” for recegnition of impairment loss allowance on trade receivables, Under

the simplified approach, the Group does not track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognizes impairment loss allowance based on lifefime ECLs at the time of
initial revenue recognition. The Group uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss allowance on the portiolio of trade receivables. The provision mafrix
is based on the historically observed default rates over the expected life of various categories of trade receivables and these are updated and changed based on
forward locking estimates at every reporting date. For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Group determines whether
there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for
impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such
that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the Group reverts to recognizing impairment loss allowance based on 12
months ECL,
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s)

{ii} Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified at initial recognition as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings, and payables, net of directly
attributable transaction costs. The Group's financial liabilities include loans and borrowings including bank overdraft, trade payable, trade deposits, retention
maoney and other payables. The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

Trade Payables
These amounts represents liabilities for goods and services provided to the Group prior to the end of financial year which are unpaid. The amounis are
unsecured, Trade and other payables are presented as current liabilities unless payment is not due within 12 months after the reporting period,

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair
value through profit or loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term, Gains or
losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. Financial liabilities designated upen initial recogrition at fair value through
profit or loss are designated as such at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteriain Ind AS 109 are satisfied.

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate ("EIR") method.
Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortization process. Amortised cost is
calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included
as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

Derecognition
A financial liability (or a part of a financial liability) is derecognized from the Group's Balance Sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged or
cancelled or expires.

Offsetting of financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the statement of assets and liabilities if there is a currently enforceable legal
right to offset the recegnised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, 1o rezlise the assets and settle the liahiiities simultaneously.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses, at each reporling date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment
testing for an asset is required, the Group estimates the asset's recoverable amount, An asset's recoverable amount s the higher of an asset's or cash-
generating unit's (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset. unless the asset does not
generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or group of assets. When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its
recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount,

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken
into account. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These caleulations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted
share prices for publicly traded companies or other available fair value indicators.

The Group bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations, which are prepared separately for each of the Group's CGUs to which
the individual assets are allocated. These budgets and forecast calculations generally cover a period of ten years. For langer periods, a long-term growth rate is
caleulated and applied to project fulure cash flows after the tenth year. To estimate cash flow projections beyond periods covered by the most recent
budgets/forecasts, the Group extrapolates cash flow projections in the budget using a steady or declining growth rate for subsequent years, unless an increasing
rate can be justified. In any case, this growth rate does not exceed the long-term average growth rate for the products, industries, or country or countries in which
the entity operates, or for the market in which the asset is used,

Impairment losses are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is an indication that previously recognised impairment
losses no longer exist or have decreased. If such indication exists, the Group estimates the asset’s or CGU's recoverable amount, A previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used o determine the asset's recoverable amount since the last impairment loss
was recognised. The reversal Is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the
statement of profit and loss unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case, the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase.

Cash and cash equivalents and other bank balance

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short term deposits with an eriginal maturity of three months or less,
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short:
term deposits, as defined above.

Treasury shares

The Group has created an Employee Stock Option Plan Trust (ESOP Trust). The Group uses ESOP trust as z vehicle for distributing shares to employees under
the employee stock option schemes. The Group treats ESOP trust as its extension and shares held by ESOP trust are treated as treasury shares,

Own equity instruments that are held by the trust are recognised at cost and deducted from equity. No gain or loss is recagnised in profit or loss on the purchase,
sale, issue or cancellation of the Group's own equity instruments. Any difference between the carrying amount and the consideration, if reis; is
the other equity.
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vi

2.3

24

Events occurring after the balance sheet date

Based on the nature of the event, the Group identifies the events occurring between the balance sheet date and the date on which the consolidated financial
statements are approved as ‘Adjusting Event' and 'Non-adjusting event'. Adjustments to assets and liabilities are made for events occurring after the balance
sheet date that provide additional information materially affecting the determination of the amounts relating to conditions existing at the balance sheet date or
because of statuiory requirements or because of their special nature. For non-adjusting events, the Group may provide a disclosure in the consolidated financial
statements considering the nature of the transaction.

Exceptional items (loss)igain
Exceptional items refer to items of income or expense within the statement of profit and loss from ordinary activities which are non-recurring and are of such size,
nature or incidence that their separate disclosure is considered necessary to explain the performance of the Group,

Recent accounting pronouncements, to the extent applicable to the Group

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023 dated March 31, 2023 to amend the following
Ind AS which are effective for annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2023, The Group applied these amendments for the first-time.

Ind AS 1 - Presentation of Financial Statements

The amendments aim to help entities provide accounting policy disclosures that are more useful by replacing the requirement for entities to disclose their
‘significant’ accounting policies with a requirement to disclose their ‘material’ accounting policies and adding guidance on how entities apply the concept of
materiality in making decisions about accounting policy disclosures. The amendments have had an minimal impact on the Group's disclosures of accounting
policies, and ne impact on the measurement, recognition or presentation of any items in the Group's Consolidated Financial Statements,

Ind AS 8 - Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors

This amendment has introduced a definifion of ‘accounting estimates’ and included amendments to Ind AS 8 to help entities distinguish changes in accounting
policies from changes in accounting estimates, The effective date for adoption of this amendment is annual pericds beginning on or after April 1, 2023. The
Group has evaluated the amendment and there is no impact on ils consclidated financial statements.

Ind AS 12 - Income Taxes

This amendment has narrowed the scope of the initial recognition exemption so that it does not apply to transactions that give rise to equal and offsetting
temporary differences. The effective date for adoption of this amendment is annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2023, The Group has evaluated the
amendment and there is no impact on its consolidated financial staterments.

Standards notified but not yet effective
There are no standards that are notified and not yet effective as on the date.

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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Shiprocket Private Limited (Formerly known as Bigfoot Retail Solutions Private Limited)

CIN: U72900DL2011PTC225614

Notes to Consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
{All amounts in Rs. Millions, unless otherwise stated)

(i) The table below provides details regarding the ageing for Capital work-in-progress :

As at March 31, 2024

Particulars

Amount in CWIP in a period of

As at

Less than 1 year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years More than 3 Years March 31, 2024
Projects in Progress - - - =
Projects Temporarily suspended - - - -
Total - - - -
As at March 31, 2023

Amount in CWIP in a period of
Particulars As at

Less than 1 year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years More than 3 Years March 31, 2023
Frojects in Progress 49.27 - - 49.27
Projects Temporarily suspended - - % 5
Total 49.27 - - 49,27

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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Shiprocket Private Limited (Formerly known as Bigfoot Retail Solutions Private Limited)
CIN: U72900DL2011PTC225614

Notes to Consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

(Al amounts in Rs. Millions, unless otherwise stated)

4a Right-of-use assets [Refer note 30]

Gross Block

Balance as at April 1, 2022

Additions Consequent to Consolidation of Subsidiaries [refer note 40A]
Additions

Balance as at March 31, 2023

Additions

Deletions

Balance as at March 31, 2024

Accumulated amortisation
Balance as at April 1, 2022
Amortisation expense

Balance as at March 31, 2023
Amortisation expense

Balance as at March 31, 2024

Carrying amount

Balance as at March 31, 2023
Balance as at March 31, 2024

(This space has been intentichally left blank)

Amount

382.79
97.30
676.82

1,156.91
351.14
(124.87)

1,383.17

30.14
157.21

187.34
235.10

422.44

969.57
960.73




Shiprocket Private Limited (Formerly known as Bigfoot Retail Solutions Private Limited)
CIN: U72900DL2011PTC225614

Notes to Draft Cc lidated fi ial stat ts for the year ended March 31, 2024

(All amounts in Rs. Millions, unl otherwise stated)

§ Investment in associates

Non current

{A) Investment in associates

Ungquoted Equity Shares

Logibricks Technologies Private Limited

[52,100 (March 31, 2023 - 52,100) shares at face value of Rs. 10 each fully paid up]

Less: Provision for impairment in value of Investment in Logibricks Technologies Private Limited
[Refer Note 24.1]

Unguoted Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares {CCPS)

Logioricks Technologies Private Limited

[632,121 (March 31, 2023 - 632,121) shares at face value of Rs. 10 each fully paid up)

Less: Provision for impairment in value of Ir 1t in Logibricks Technologies Private Limited
[Refer Note 24.1]

Total

Aggregate value of unquoted investments
Aggregate amount of impairment in value of investments (Refer note 24.1)

6 Financial Assets
&{i} Investments

Non current

(A} Other Investments (valued at fair value through Other Comprehensive Income) [FVTOCI]

Unguoted shares

Nirmalaya Wellness Private Limited
[9 (March 31, 2023 - 8) shares at face value of Rs, 10 each fully paid up]

Add: fair value through other comprehensive income [Refer Note 24,2]
Muhavra Enlerprises Private Limited

[44 (March 31, 2023 - 44) shares at face value of Rs. 10 each fully paid up]
Add: fair value through other comprehensive income [Refer Note 24.2)

Almo Man Private Limited

[Nil (March 31, 2023 - 1,122) shares at face value of Rs. 10 each fully paid up]

Add: fair value through other comprehensive income [Refer Note 24.2]

Eat Better Ventures Private Limited

[260 (March 31, 2023 - 260) shares at face value of Rs. 10 each fully paid up]
Add: fair value through other comprehensive income [Refer Note 24.2]

Climb Foods Private Limited

[54 (March 31, 2023 - 54) shares at face value of Rs. 100 each fully paid up]
Add: fair value through other comprehensive income

Oddiy Healthcare Private Limited

[118 {March 31, 2023 - 118) shares at face value of Rs. 10 each fully paid up)

Add: fair value through other comprehensive income [Refer Note 24.2]
Woovly India Private Limited

[197 (March 31, 2023 - 197) shares at face value of Rs, 10 each fully paid up]
Add: fair value through other comprehensive income [Refer Note 24.2]
Bewakoof Brands Private Limited

[Nil {March 31, 2023 - Nil) shares at face value of Rs. 10 each fully paid up]
Evenflow Brands Tech Private Limited

[45 (March 31, 2023 - 45) shares al face value of Rs. 10 each fully paid up]

Add: fair value through other comprehensive income [Refer Note 24.2]

Slick Organics Private Limited

[455 (March 31, 2023 - 455) shares at face value of Rs. 10 each fully paid up]
Add: fair value through other comprehensive income [Refer Note 24.2]
Nirmalaya Wellness Private Limited

[45 {March 31, 2023 - 45) shares at face value of Rs, 10 each fully paid up]
Add: fair value through other comprehensive income [Refer Note 24.2)
Chipper consumer Private Limited

[190 {March 21, 2023 - 180) shares at face value of Rs, 10 each fully paid up]

Add: fair value through other comprehensive income [Refer Note 24.2)

Nane Phyto Care Privale Limited

[200 (March 31, 2023 - 200) shares at face value of Rs, 10 each fully paid up]
Add: fair value through other comprehensive income [Refer Note 24.2]

FDM Digital Solutions Private Limited

{200 (March 31, 2023 - 200} shares al face value of Rs. 10 each fully paid up]

Add: fair value through other comprehensive income [Refer Note 24.2}
Happytizers Private Limited

[140 (March 31, 2023 - 140) shares at face value of Rs. 10 each fully paid up]

As at
Marc:;:twﬂ "'T:;: o, ;jf;”
8.50 8.50
(8.50) (8.50)
105.10 103.10
(103.10) (103.10)
111.60 111.60
(111.60) (111.60)
As at
Marc: §1a.lzaz4 M::‘::é:;ﬁn
0.61 0.81
©.81) &
2.95 295
(2.95) (2.85)
. 5.00
: (5.00)
5.00 5.00
(5.00) (5.00)
052 0.52
(0.52) (0.52)
5.01 5.0
(5.01) (5.01)
20,70 2070
(20.70) (20.70)
6.98 6.98
(6.98) 3
10.00 10.00
(10,00} 2
7.60 7.60
(7.60) -
487 487
(4.87) .
2.50 2.50
(2.50) .
5,00 5.00
(5.00) ”
5.03 5.03



Shiprocket Private Limited (Formerly known as Bigfoot Retail Solutions Private Limited)
CIN: U72900DL2011PTC225614

Notes to Draft Consolidated fi ial stat

for the year ended March 31, 2024

(All amounts in Rs. Millions, unless otherwise stated)

6ii)

Add; fair value through other comprehensive income [Refer Note 24.2]

Laurike Private Limited

[142 {March 31, 2023 - 142) shares at face value of Rs. 10 each fully paid up]

Add: fair value through other comprehensive income [Refer Note 24.2]

FAE Beauty Private Limited

(388 (March 31, 2023 - Nil) shares at face value of Rs. 3,600 each fully paid up|

Add: fair value through other comprehensive income [Refer Note 24.2]

Shoprtv Private Limited

(155,660 {March 31, 2023 - 155 660) shares al face value of Rs. 100 each fully paid up]

Add: fair value through olher comprehensive income [Refer Note 24.2]

Current Investments (valued at fair value through Profit and Loss) [FVTPL]

(A) Investments in Mutual Funds
Aditya Birla Sun Life Liguid Fund Growth Direct Plan
194,123.26 unils (March 31, 2023 - 194,398 57) at NAV of Rs. 389.68 (March 31, 2023 - Rs. 363.08) each

Kotak Liguid Fund Growth Direct Plan
14,403.36 unils (March 31, 2023 - 14,403 36) at NAV of Rs. 4,879.04 (March 31, 2023 - Rs, 4,54B.41) each

Tata Liguid Fund Growth Direct Plan
Nil units (March 31, 2023 - 18,443.77) at NAV of Rs. Nil (March 31, 2023 - Rs. 3,551.41) each

ABSL Savings Fund Retail Growth
Nil units (March 31, 2023 - 141.23) at NAV of Rs. Nil (March 31, 2023 - Rs, 464.16) each

ICICI Prudential Short Term Fund
Nil units (March 31, 2023 - 72,780.78) at NAV of Rs. Nil (March 31, 2023 - Rs, 50.53) each

1CICI Prudential Mutual Fund
Nil units {March 31, 2023 - 467.75) at Rs. Nil (March 31, 2023 - Rs. 23.61) each

IDFC Bond Fund Short Term Plan

Nil units (March 31, 2023 - 57,735.43) at Rs. Nil (March 31, 2023 - Rs. 48.17) each
Kotak Equity Arbitrage Fund

Nil units {March 31, 2023 - Nil) at Rs. Nil (March 31, 2023 - Rs. Nil) each

Franklin India Ultra Short Bond Fund
Nil units {March 31, 2023 - 622,32) at Rs. Nil (March 31, 2023 - Rs, 93.38) each

Total

Non Current
Current

Aggregate amount of unquolted investments at FVTOCT
Aggregate amount of quoted investments at FVTPL

Trade receivables

Trade receivables

Break-up of Trade Receivables:

Trade receivables

Secured, considered good
Unsecured, considered good
Trade receivables - credit impared

Impairment Allowance (allowarnce for bad and doubtful debts)
Trade recsivables - credit impaired

Total Trade Receivables

Set out below is the in the for expected credit losses of trade receivables:

Balances at the beginning of the year
Additions Consequent to Conselidation of Subsidizries [Refer Note 404]
Additions during the year [Refer Note 22]
Written off during the year

Balances at the end of the year

As at
As at
March 31, 2023
March 31, 2024 (restated*)
(5.03) -
4.20 420
(4.20) B
5.99 '
(5,99) -
15.57 15.57
—— (15.57)
7565 L8
st 65.51
i 55.50
) 0.07
) 3.68
. 0.01
. 2.78
) 0.00
) 0.06
145.92 25518
i 46.98
145.92 208.13
} 46.98
145.:92 208.19
As at

As at
March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023
(r ")

1,170.59 807.52
1,170.59 907.52
Ag at As at

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023
{restated*)

1,170.59 907.52
457.49 551,46
1,628.09 1,458 98
(457.49) (551.46)
1,170.59 907.52

As at
As at
March 31, 2023
March 31, 2024 (restated)

551.46 144.18

- 126.38

197.73 280.89

(291.89) -
457.49 551.46




Shiprocket Private Limited (Formerly known as Bigfoot Retail Sol
CIN: U72900DL2011PTC225614

MNotes to Draft C
(All amounts in Rs. Millions, unless otherwise stated)

lidated financial

Private Limited)

for the year ended March 31, 2024

Trade Receivables ageing schedule:

As at March 31, 2024

B{iii)

6(iv)

Out ding for following periods from transaction date
Particulars 6 - Total
= Ih.a 1 i moyr:ahrs 4 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years 9
Undisputed Trade receivables — considered 1,120.69 R R _ R 1.120.68
good
Undisputed Trade Receivables — credit impared 49.90 280,72 176.78 - - 507.39
Total 1,170.59 280.72 176.78 - - 1,628.09
As at March 31, 2023
Particulars Outstanding for following periods from ion date
Less than 6 & months -1 Total
TAGRERS yoar 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years
ig.lor:ésputed Trade receivables — considered BB5.64 834 13.54 B = 907.52
Undisputed Trade Receivables — credit impaired 120.78 304.43 121.03 522 - 551,48
Total 1,006.42 312.77 134.57 5.22 - 1,458.98

Notes:

&) No trade or other receivable are due from directors or other officers of the company either severally or jointly with any other person. Nor any trade or other receivable are dus from firms
or private companies respeclively in which any director is a pariner, a director or a member. Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on terms of 30 to 20 days.

b) For terms and conditions relating to related party receivables, refer Note 34,

¢} Refer Note 6(v) for unbilled receivables.

Cash and cash equivalents

Balances with banks
— On current accounts

— On current accounts for Amount payable, collected on behalf of the customers
— Deposits with ariginal maturity of less than three months

Cash on hand

Total

Bank balances other than (ili) above

Balances with banks:

- Deposits with original maturity for more than 3 months and upto 12 months*

Total

Notes:

As at
As at
March 31, 2023
March 31, 2024 (restated")
150,60 393.24
B82.36 450.64
- 12.04
- 0.00
842.96 asss.i
As at
As at
March 31, 2023
March 31, 2024 (restated*)
168775 79.15
1,687.75 78.15

&) Deposits with banks are made for varying periods of between six menths and two years, depending on the immediate cash requirements of the Group, and earn interest at the

respective shor-term deposit rates.

b) As At March 31, 2024, the Group had available Rs. 536,75 millions (March 31, 2023 - Rs. B25.12 millions) of undrawn committed borrowing facilities.
¢} As at March 31, 2024, the Group has fixed deposits lien of Rs. 2 674.91 millions (March 31, 2023 - Rs. 2,711.83 milions) marked for Kotak Mahindra Bank, ICIC] Bank, HDFC Bank,
Axis Bark, Yes Bank and American Express for OD-FD facility and Corporate Credit cards.

(This space has been intentionally left blank)




Shiprocket Private Limited (Formerly known as Bigfoot Retail Solutions Private Limited)
CIN: UT72900DL2011PTC225614

Notes to Draft Ci lidated fi ial its for the year ended March 31, 2024

(All amounts in Rs. Millions, unless otherwise stated)

6{v} Other financial assets

As at fro
March 31, 2023
March 31, 2024 (restated")
Financial assets carried at amortised cost
Non Current
a) Security deposits
Unsecured, considered good €B.73 71,06
Unsecured, considered doubtful - 1:d5
Less: Allowance for doubtful deposits - (1.25)
6B.73 71.06
b) Advance for Investment in subsidiaries
Unsecured, considered good - 300.00
- 300.00
b) Bank deposits*
With remaining maturity of more than 12 months 2,195.30 157.57
2,195.30 157.57
c) Interest Receivable
Interest accrued on deposits with banks 121.65 14.58
121.65 14.58
Total Other Non-current financial assets 2,385.68 543.21
Current
&) Securily deposits
Unsecured, considered good 9.03 5.83
9.03 5,83
b) Caontract Assels - Unbilled Revenue
Unsecured, considered good [Refer note 15) 920.56 685,77
920.56 685.77
¢} Bank deposits®
With remaining maturity of less than 12 months 1,189.95 6,340.86
1,189.95 6,340.86
d) Interest Receivable
Interest accrued on deposits with banks 47.26 228.65
47.26 228.65
&) Other Receivables
Unsecured, considered good 126.76 112,57
Unsecured, considered doubtful 43.71 39,02
Less: Allowance for doubtiul receivables {43.71) (38.02)
126.76 112.57
Total Other current financial assets 2,293.56 7,373,68

“Note: Deposits with banks are made for varying periods depending upon the immediate cash requirements of the Company, and eam interest at the respective short-term deposit rates.

7 Inventories (At lower of Cost or Net realisable value)

As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
(restated’)
Traded goods (Packing Material) 14,72 12,13
14.72 1213
8 Income Tax Assets (net)
As at
As at
March 31, 2023
March 31, 2024 (restated")
Non current
Advance Incomea Tax - 17.14
Less: Provision for Income Tax - -
Total Non current Tax Assets - 17.14
Current
Advance Income Tax 307.85 295.03

Less: Provision for Income Tax

Total Current Tax Assets 307.85 295.03




Shiprocket Private Limited (Formerly known as Bigfoot Retail Solutions Private Limited)
CIN: U72800DL2011PTC225614

Notes to Draft Consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

(All amounts in Rs. Millions, unless otherwise stated)

9 Other assets

As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
{restated*)
Non current
a) Capital Advances
Unsecured, considered good - 1.94
- 1.94
b) Prepaid Expenses
Unsecured, considered good - 0.06
= 0.06
Total Other non-current assets - 2.01
Current
a) Advance to Suppliers
Unsecured, considered good 931.34 83.58
Unsecured, considered doubtful 0.27 52,29
Less: Allowance for doubtful advances {0.27) (52.29)
831.34 83.58
b) Prepaid Expenses
Unsecured, considered good 28.56 3831
29.56 38.31
c) Advance to Employes
Unsecured, considered good 1.73 1.55
1.73 1.55
d) Balances with Government autherities (net) 281.24 171.80
281.24 171.90
Total Other current assets 1,243.86 296.35

(This space has been intentionally left blank)




Shiprocket Private Limited (Formerly knewn as Bigfoot Retail Solutions Private Limited)
CIN: U7259000L2011PTC225614
Notes to Draft C. for the year ended March 31, 2024

{All amounts in Rs. Millions, unless otherwise stated)

10 Share Capital

Details of share capital is as follows:

As at
As at
March 31, 2023
March 31, 2024 {restated’)
Authorised Share Capital
Equity Shares
1,750,000 (March 31, 2023 - BOD,000) Equity Shares of Rs. 10 sach 17.50 £.00
Instruments Entirely Equity in Nature
B00,000 (March 31, 2023 - Nil) Preferance shares of Rs 10 ear.h .00 :
24,581 (March 31, 2023 - 84,581) 0.0001% C i i shares Senes A of Rs, 10 each 0.95 085
182,000 (March 31, 2023 - 182.000) 0,00013% Compulsorily C lole P Shares Series 8 of Rs, 332.90 sach 63,81 53,93
468, 488 (March 31, 2023 - 468 4BE) 0,0001% Compulsorily C ible Pref Shares Series B1 of Rs, 355 aach 166.31 166.31
280,000 (March 31, 2023 - 260,000) 0.0001% C. Isorify C: Pref Shares Series C1 of Rs. 355 each 85,40 28.40
105,000 March 31, 2023 - 105,000) 0.0001% C Iserily C le Pret Shares Series C2 of Rs. 355 each 37.28 37.28
81,500 (March 31, 2023 - 81.500) 0.0001% Compulsorily C ibde Pref Shares Series C3 of Rs. 355 each 28.93 28.83
180,000 (March 31, 2023 - 150,000) 0.0001% C isoily C ible F Shares Series D1 of Rs. 355 each B3.80 63.50
360,000 (March 31, 2023 - 360,000) 0.0001% C dsoily C Shares Serles E of Rs, 355 each 127,80 127.80
80,000 March 31, 2023 - 80,000) 0.0001% C isoily C ible Pref Ehares Sefies E1 of Rs, 355 each 28.40 28.40
40,000 March 31, 2023- 50,000) 0,0001% Ci s orily C ible Fref Shares Series E2 of Rs. 355 each 31,95 31.85
Total 674.35 656,85

* During the previous year ended March 31 2024, the aulhorized share capital of the Company has been Increased from Rs. §56.85 million 1o Rs. 574.35 milkon by adding 85,000 equity shares of Rs, 10 each and

80,000 preference shares of Rs. 10 each,

Equity Shares
Issued, subscribed and fully paid up
588,802 (March 31, 2023 - 500.988) Equity Shares of Rs, 10 each 5.80 501
Less: Amount recoverable from ESOP's Trust [71.000 (March 31, 2023 - 71,000) equity shares of Rs. 104
each allotied lo the ESOP trust]* 071 .71
{A) 519 4.30
lssued, Subscribed but not fully paid shares
il (March 31, 2023 - 32,115} Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each, Rs, 1 per share called-up # - 0.02
8) - 0.03
Total (C=A+B) 513 4,33
c Isorily C ible P shares
Issued, subscribed and fully paid up
0.0001% C i shares Series A
90,781 (March 31, 2!].23 80 ?BI] El A001% Compulsorly C ble Prafs & Shares of Rs. 10 each .81 0.51
0.0001% Compulsarily C shares Senesﬁ
191,845 (March 31, 2023 191, 845) 0.0001% C C: Shares of Rs.332 89 each 6388 63,68
0.0001% C. I 1 shares Seﬂes B1
443100 (March 31, 2023 IGB 281) 0.0001% Compul G ible P Shares of Rs.355 sach 157.30 166.28
0.0001% C I . F shares Sa«es c1
227,033 March 31, 2&23 24/5 253} o EIIJOI% ol sz aril Pref Ehares of Rs, 355 each B0.60 B7.42
D.0001% Ci I Lol Ilamsellﬁc\?
94,968 (March 31, 2023 94 968) 0.0001% Compubsonly Co P Shares of Rs. 355 pach 337 3an
0.0001% Compuk P shares Senes C3
&1,395 March 31, ZIIQJ 11 395) o CII]DI% Compulsodly C flible Pref Shares of Rs. 355 each 28.50 2880
0.0001% Cs y C shares Series D1
167148 {March 3, 2023 167 1-48) 0.0001% G Isorily C: P Shares of Rs, 355 each 58.34 55.34
0.0001% C I Prefe shares Senies E
348207 (March 31, 2023 349.207] o, UODI% [ lsorily C: ible Pref Shares of Rs. 355 sach 123,87 123.87
0.0001% C, I shares Senes E1
il farch 31, 2023- Ml} 0. 0001% c Isoily Converible Pref Shares Seres E1 of Rs, 355 each - -
0.0001% Compulsorily C fi shares Series E2
50,706 {March 31, 2023— 58.783) 0 0001% C s orily C il Shares Serles EZ of Rs, 355 each 2B.85 21.23
Total o) 577.25 585.63
e
Total jssued Share Capital (E=C+D) 582.44 589,95
==

* The Group has created an ESOP Trust for providing share based payments to its smployees. The Company

instruments that are reacquired (freasury shares) are recognized at cost and deducted from equity shara capital,
# During the year ended March 31, 2024, the remaining amount in respect af 32,115 (no.s) parly paid up equity shares has been called up and the same has been converied inte fully pald up equity shares.

{a) Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of reporting year

Ordinary Equity shares
Issued , subscribed and fully paid up
As at April 1, 2022

Add: Series E1 CCPS converled inlo Equity shares during the year

Less: Buy-back of sharas during the year
As at March 31, 2023

Equity shares

Amaont

055

Add: Issued pursuant 1o merger with "Glaucus Supply Chain Solutions Private Limited™ during the year
Add: Partly paid up shares eonverted into Fully paid shares during the year

Add: Series B1 CCPS converted into Equity shares the year
Add. Series C1 CCPS converted into Equity shares the year
As at March 31, 2024

Ordinary Equity shares

Issued | subscribed and partly paid up
Asat April 1, 2022

Add: Issued during the year

As at March 31, 2023

Add: Parlly paid up shares converted into Fully paid shares during the year

As at March 31, 2024

334
0.37

4.30
042
0.3z
025
0.18

519

Amount

trests the trust as its exlension and shares hebd by trust are freated as treasury shares. Cum equity




Shiprocket Private Limited (Formerly known as Bigfoot Retall Solutions Private Limited)
CIN: U728000L2011PTC225614
Notes to Draft © lidated fi ial staty for the year ended March 31, 2024

[All amounts in Rs. Millions, unless otherwise stated)

Series A
Mo, of shares Amount
0.0001% C Isorily C ibile P shares Series A
As at April 1, 2022 (CCPS of Rs. 10 vach) 90,781 0.M
Add: Issued dering the year = +
As at March 31, 2021 {CCPS of Rs. 10 each) 90,781 0.91
Add: lssued during the year - -
As at March 31, 2024 (CCPS of Rs. 10 each) 90,781 0.91
Series B
Mo. of shares Amount
0.0001% C Isarily C ible P: shares Series B
As at April 1, 2022 (CCPS of Rs, 332,99 each) 1,491,845 B3.88
Add: Issued durng the year - -
As at March 31, 2023 (CCPS of Rs, 332.99 each) 1.91,845 6186
Add: lssued during tha year it x
As at March 31, 2024 (CCPS of Rs. 332,99 each) 1.91,845 63.88
Series Bi
No. of shares Amount
0.0001% Compulserily Convertible Preference shares Series B1
As at April 1, 2022 (CCPS of Rs. 355 each) 4,68,381 166,28
Add: Issued during the year = -
As at March 31, 2023 (CCPS of Rs. 355 each) 4,658,381 166,28
Add: lssued during the year = -
Less: Senes B1 CCPS converted into Equity shares the year {25281} {8.97)
As at March 31, 2024 (CCPS of Rs, 355 each) 443,100 157.30
it e
Series C1
Mo, of shares Amount
0.0001% © I=arily C ible Pref, shares Series C1
As at April 1, 2022 (CCPS of Rs. 355 each) 2,468,253 B7.42
Add: lssued during the year - -
As at March 31, 2023 {CCPS of Rs, 355 each) 246,253 8742
Add: Issued during the year - B
Less: Seres B1 CCPS converted ito Equity shares the year {18.220) (5.82)
As at March 31, 2024 {CCPS of Rs, 355 each) 2,27,033 B0.60
Series C2
No. of shares. Amount
0.0001% G Isorily C ible P shares Series C2
As at April 1, 2022 [CCPS of Rs. 355 each) 94,568 3,71
Increase dunng the year - -
As at March 31, 2023 (CCPS of Rs, 355 each) 94,968 BN
Increase during the year - =
As at March 31, 2024 (CCPS of Rs. 355 each) 94,968 3371
Series C3
No. of shares Amount
0.0001% C Iserily Ci Prefs shares Series C3
As at April 1, 2022 (CCPS of Rs, 355 each) #1,385 28.90
Increase during the year - -
As at March 31, 2023 (CCPS of Rs, 355 each) 81,395 28.90
Increase during the year - -
As at March 31, 2024 [CCPS of Rs, 355 each) 1,385 26.90
= i
Series D1
No. of shares Amount

— To.ofshares _____  Amount
0.0001% Compulsorily Convertible Preference shares Series D1

As at April 1, 2022 (CCPS of Rs. 355 each) 1,867,148 59.34
Increase during the year 2 -
As at March 31, 2023 {CCPS of Rs, 355 sach) 167,148 58.34
Increase dunng the year = et
As at March 31, 2024 (CCPS of Rs, 355 each) 1,67,148 55,34
Series E
Mo. of shares Amount
0.0001% G iz orily C ible Pi shares Series E
As at April 1, 2022 (CCPS of Rs, 355 each) - -
Increase during the year 340,207 123.87
As at March 31, 2023 (CCPS of Rs. 355 each) 349,207 123.97
Increase during the year = -
As at March 31, 2024 (CCPS of Rs. 355 each) 349,207 123.87
Series E1
No, of shares Amount
0.0001% ily © ible P shares Series E1
As at April 1, 2022 (CCPS of Rs, 355 each) - -
Increase during the year 74841 28,50
Less: Convered into Equity shares during the year (74,841) {26.50)

As at March 31, 2023 {CCPS of Rs. 355 each) & A

Increase during the year - .
As at March 31, 2024 {[CCPS of Rs. 355 each) 4 =

Serles E2
Mo. of shares Amount
0.0001% Compulsorily C ible Pref shares Series E2
As at April 1, 2022 (CCP5S of Rs, 355 each) - -
Increase during the year 59,793 21,23
As at March 31, 2023 {CCPS of Rs, 355 each) 58,783 21.23
Increase during the year 20,913 742

As at March 31, 2024 (CCPS of Rs, 355 each) 80,708 2B.65




Shiprocket Private Limited (Formerly knewn as Bigfoot Retall Solutions Private Limited)
CIN: U72500DL2011PTC225614
Notes to Draft C lidated fi fal for the year ended March 31, 2024

(All amounts in Rs, Millions, unless otherwise stated)

(b} Details of sharehiolders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Class & Name of Shareholder Humber % of holding Nomber % of holding _
Equity shares
Saahil Goel 1,15,888 24.45% 1,15,866 2TTT%
Gautam Kapoor 115885 24 45% 1,15,865 27T7%
ESOP's Trust 1,16.511 24, 58% 116,511 2r.8e%
Nirvana Digital Indfa Fund 48,174 10.16% 3673 0.8B%
Anvind Limited A7.044 7.82% A7,044 B.BE%
0.0001% C Isorily © ible P Shares Series A
Tribe Capital ill, LLC. Series 1 48,258 53.16% 48258 53,168%
Trbe Cagital Ill, LLC, Series 5 22618 24.91% 22618 24.91%
Bertelsmann Nededand B.V. 18,907 21.93% 18,807 21,83%
0.0001% Compulserily C ible F Shares Series B
Mirvana Digital Investment Holding Ltd 20,727 10.80% 20727 10.80%
Triba Capital Il LLC, Series 5 54,788 28.56% 54,788 28.56%
Bertelsmann Mederlznd B\, 34,809 18.14% 34,808 18.14%
Info Edge Ventures - 0.00% 22,868 11.52%
Beacon Trusteeship Umited - Info Edge Venture Fund - |E Venture Fund | 22,853 11.92% - 0.00%
Zomalo Limited 21,832 11.38% 21,832 11.38%
Paypal Inc 11,434 5.86% 11,434 5.86%
0.0001% C flsorily C ibile F Shares Series B1
Berelsmann Nederland 8.\, 241,423 54.48% 241423 51.54%
Tribe Capital lll, LLC, Series 5 65,887 15.77% 69,867 14.82%
Mirvana Digital Investment Helding Lid 56.892 12.84% 56,892 12.15%
MCP3 SPVLLC 40,906 8.23% 40,506 B73%
Mirvana Digital India Fund - 0.00% 25.281 540%
0.0001% C Isorily Ci ible P Shares Series C1
Berelsmann Nederland BV, 182112 B4.62% 18212 T8.01%
Tribe Capital lll, LLC, Senes 1 28815 12.74% 28815 11.74%
Nirvana Digital India Fund - 0.00% 18,220 TE0%
0,0001% Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares Series C2
Berlelsmann Mederland B\, 27734 23.20% 27734 20.20%
Tribe Capital lll, LLC, Series 1 B7.234 70.80% 67,234 70,80%
0.0001% Compulsorily € ibile Pref Shares Series C3
MCP3 5PV LLC 43411 53.33% 42411 53.33%
Tribe Capltal lil, LLC, Seres & 37,984 46.67% 37,984 46.67%
0,0001% Compulsaorily C: Prai: Shares Series D1
MCP3 SPV LLC 26678 15.96% 26,678 15.56%
Tribe Capital lll, LLC, Series 7 Partners - 0.00% 21,344 1277%
Tribe Capital ll, LLS, Series 7 B.BOSO 5.38% - 0.00%
Paypal Inc 53,358 31.92% 53,358 I1E2%
Bertelsmann Nedertand BV, 53,359 31.92% 53,359 31.82%
0.0001% C. Isarily C: ible Pref Shares Series E
Zomato Limited 132,082 37.82% 1.32,082 37T
MacRitchie Investments Ple. Ltd 1.08,058 31.23% 108,059 $1.23%
LR India Fund | 8.8, SICAV-RAIF 59,851 20.01% 63,861 20.01%
0.0001% C Isorily C ible Prafs Shares Series E2
hacRitchie lnvestments Pre. Lid 17,283 21.41% 17,283 2B.80%
LR India Fund | §.a.r.l, SICAV-RAIF 17,875 2227 17,8975 30.06%
Beralsmann Mederland BV, B.887 11145 8887 15.03%
MCP3 5PV LLC 4,484 5.57% 4,484 7.52%
Moore Siraleglc Ventures LLC 8,087 11.14% 3,987 15.03%
AFOS LLC 20,813 25.81% - 0.00%

(&) Tarms! rights attached to Equity shares
The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of Rs,10 per share, Each holder of equity shares is entillad to one vote per share, In the event of liquidation of the Comgpany, the holders of

equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the pany, aftar of all p ial amount. The distribullon will be in proporion to the equity shares held by the sharehoiders,




Shiprocket Private Limited (Formerly known as Bigtoot Retail Sclutions Private Limited)
CIN: UT2900DL20M1PTC225614
Notes to Draft Cy lidated fi ial st for the year ended March 31, 2024

(All amounts in Rs. Millions, unless otherwise stated)

{d) Terms! rights attached to Instruments entirely equity in nature

0.0001% C lati pulsory C ible Prefs Shares- Series A {Face Value- Rs. 10)

Seties A CCPS may at any time be, fully or partly converted inlo equity shares at the sole option and discretion of the GRS holder, at the rate ef 1 {One) fully paid eqully share per 1 (One) Seriss & CCPS.

Senies A CCPS will camy voling rights pari-passu with the equity shares, on an as-f convered basis,

Sedes A CCPS shall have a maximum maturty period of 18 (Ninetean) years from the date of their issuance. on the expiry of which, the series A CCPS shall compulsorily and automatically covert info Uity
shares,

The CCPS shareholders have right to receive dividend piar to equity share holders. The Series A CCPS bears a cumulative dividend rate of 0.0001% per annum. In addition to the abave, the holders of sath of
tha Series A COPS are entilled to such prop dividends as distri to the other Sharel of the Company, d Ined on & Fully Diluted Basis.

In svent of liquidation, Parl passu with the payment of the amounts to the holders of Series A Proference Shares, each of the holders of the Series A Preference Shares vill be entithed lo receive {in preference to
any equity shareholder), an amount equal to the higher of: (8) a pro rata portion of the proceeds of the Liguidalion Event based on the shareholding of such helder of Szries A Preference Shares in the Company
on a fully diluted basts; and (b) one times the Subscription Price on each Seres A Preference Share held by such helder plus any declared but unpaid dividends.

0.0001% lative Compulsery C ible Pref Shares- Series B (Face Value- Rs. 332.99)

Series B CCPS may at any lime be, fully or parlly converted inta equity shares at the sole option and discretion of the CCPS halder, at the rate of 1 (One) lully paid equity share par 1 (Gne} Series 8 CCPS.

Seties B CCPS will carry voling nghts pari-passu with the equity shares, on an as<f converted basis,

Seties B CCPS shall have & maximum malurity period of 18 (Mineteen) years from the date of their issuance, on the expiry of which, the series B CCPS shall compulserily 2nd automatically covert into equity

shares,
Tha CCPS shareholders have right to receive dividend prior to equity share holders. The Serles B COPS bears a cumulative dividend rate of 0.0001% per annum, In additicn o the above, the holders of each of
the Series B CCPS are entitled to such proporti fivi as distrit to the other 5t I of the Company, d aned on a Fully Diluted Basis,

In event of liquidation, after the payment of amounts ta the holders of Series B CCPS, each of the holders of the Series B Preference Shares will be entitled to receive (in pref 1o ahy equity sh dder), an
amount equal lo the higher of: (a) a pro rata portion of the procesds of the Liguidation Event based on the shareholding of such holder of Seres B Preference Shares in the Company on a Tully-diluted basis; and
() ene imes the Subscription Price on each Series B Praferance Share held by such holder plus any declared but unpaid dividends,

0.0001% Cumulative C. lsory C ible P Shares - Series B1 (Face Value- Rs. 155)

During the year ended March 31, 2016, the Company issued Tully paid up and subscibed 468,381 ros 0,0001% Cumul Compulsory C hble Pref, Shares (CCPS)- Genes B1 of Face Value of Rs,
355 (Rupees Three Hundred Filty Five) each at a premium of Rs. 727.22 each.

Series B CCPS may at any time be, fully or parily converted inlo enquity shares at the sole option and discretion of the GCPS holder, at the rate af 1 (Gne) fully paid equily share per 1 (One} Series B1 CORS.
Series B1 CCPS will carry voling rights parl-passu with the equity shates, on an as-f converled basis,

Series B1 CCPS shall have a maximum malurity period of 18 (Ninateen) years from the date of their issuance, on the expiry of which, the series B1 CCPS shall compulsorily and automatically covert info equity
shares,

The CCPS shareholders have right to receive dividend prior to equity share holders The Series BY COPS bears a cumulative dividend rate of 0,0001% per annum. In addition to the above, the holders of sach of
the Series B1 CCPS are entitled to such i divid as distri 1 the other Shareholders of the Company, determined on a Fully Difuted Basis.

In event of quidation, Each of the holders of the Series B1 CCPS will be enfiled to receive {in praf: to any equity shareholder), zn amount equal to the higher of: (a} a pro rata porfion of the proceeds of the
Liguidation Event based on the shareholding of such holder of Series 81 CCPS in the Company on a fully diluted basis: and (b) one times the Subsed pllon Price on each Seres B1 CCPS held by such holder plus
any deciared but unpaid dividends.

Duwiing the year ended March 31, 2024, 25 251 nos 0.0001% C i Comy (o ble Py Shares (CCPS)- Series B1 of Face Value of Rs. 355 (Rupees Thiee Hundred Fifty Five) each have
heen converted into 25,281 nos Equity shares of Face Value of Bs. 10 {(Rupees Ten) each,

0.0001% C Compulsory C ible P Shares - Series C1 (Face Value- Rs. 355)

Duting the year ended March 31, 2018, the Company issued fully pald up and subscribed 2,485,253 nos 0.0001% Ci ive £ y G P Shares (CCPS)- Series C1 of Face Value of Rs.
355 (Rupses Three Hundred Fifty Five) each st a premium of Rs. 727 .22 each,

Senes C1 CCPS may at any time be, Iully or partly converied into equity shares af the sale option and discrelion of the CCPS holder, at the rate of 1 (One) fully paid equty share per 1 (One) Series C1 CCPS.
Seres C1 CCPS will carry voting rights pani-passu with the equity shares, on an as-f converted basis,

Series C1 CCPS shall have a maximum maturity period of 18 (Ninetesn) years from the date of their issuance, on the expiry of which, the series C1 CCPE shall compulsorily and automalically covert into equity
shares.

The CCPS shareholders have right to receive dividend prior to equity share holders . The Series 1 COPS baars | cumulative dividend rate of 0.0001% per annum. In addition to the above, the holders of each of
the Series C1 CCPS are entitied to such i dividends as distr to the other Shareholders of the Company, determined on a Fully Diluted Basis.

In event of liguidation, Each of the holders of the Serles C1 CCPS will be enlitied to receive {in pref to any eguity Ider), an amount equal to the higher of; (a} @ pre rata podion of the proceeds of the
Liguidation Event based on the sharehalding of such hoider of Series 1 CCPS in the Company on a fully diluted basis: and (b) one fimes the Subscriplion Price on each Series C1 CCPS held by such holder plus
any declared but unpald dividends,

During the year ended hMarch 31, 2024, 19,220 nos 0.0001% Cumul Compulsary C ible Pref, Shares (CCPS) Serles C1 of Face Value of Rs, 355 (Rupees Three Hundred Filty Five) each have
been converted into 19,220 nos Equity shares of Face Value of Rs, 10 {Rupess Ten) gach.

0.0001% Cumulative Compulsory C P Shares - Series C2 (Face Value- Rs. 356)

During the year ended March 31, 2020, the Company issued fully pald up and subscribed 54,988 nos 0,0001% C lative C isory Convertibla Prefs Shares {CCPS) Series C2 of Face Value of Rs,
355 (Rupees Three Hundred Fifty Five) each at a premium of Rs. 3560 each,

Series C2 CCPS may al any time be, fully or partly converted into equity shares at the sole oplion and discretion of the GCPS holder, at the rate of 1 (One) fully paid equity share per 1 (One) Saries ©2 CCPS.
Series C2 CCPS will carry voling rights pari-passu with the equity shares, on an as-f converted basis,

Series C2 CCPS shall have a maximum maturily period of 18 (Mineteen) years from the date of their issuance, on the expiry of which, the senies C2 CCPS shall compulsanily and automatically coverl info equity
shares,

The CCPS sharehelders have tight to receive dividend prior to equity share holders . The Sefies G2 CCPS bears a cumulative dividend rate of 0,0001% per annum. In addition to the above, the holders of each of
the Series C2 CCPS are entitled to such | i il a5 distrit i lo the other Shareholders of the Company, detarmined on a Fully Diluted Basis.

In event of liguidation, Each of the holders of the Series C2 CCPS will be entitled to receive {in pref to any equity holder), an amount equal to the higher of- (a) a pra rata pedion of the proceeds of the
Liguidation Event based on the shareholding of such holder of Seres G2 CCPS in the Company on a fully diluled basis; and (b} one limes the Subscription Price on each Series C2 CCPS hald by such helder plus
any declared bul unpaid dividends,

0.0001% Cumulative C isory © tble Pi Shares - Series C3 (Face Value-Rs, 355)

During the year ended March 21, 2021, the Company issued fully paid up and subscribed 81,385 nos 0.0001% G ive Compulsory C ible Pref Bhares (CCPS)- Seres C3 of Face Value of Rs.
355 (Rupees Three Hundred Filty Five) each at a premium of Rs, §,447.93 each.

Senes C3 CCPS may al any time be, fully or parlly converted inte equity shares at the sale option and discretion of the CCPS halder, at the rate of 1 (Cne) fully paid equity share per 1 (One) Sees C3 COPS,
Senes C3 CCPS will carry voling rights pari-passu with the equity shates, on an as-if converted basis,

Series C3 CCPS shall have a maximum malusity period of 19 (Ninateen) years frem the date of their issuance, on the expiry of which, the series £3 CCPS shall compulsenly and autematically covert into equity
shares,

The CCRS shareholders have right to receive dividend prior to equily share holders . The Seres C3 CCPS bears a cumulative dividend rate of 0.0001% per annum, In addition to the abave, the holders of each of
the Serles C3 CCPS are entitled to such proport dividends as distibuted to the other Shareholders of the Company, delermined on  Fully Diluted Basis,

In event of liquidation, Each of the holders of the Series ©3 COPS will be ontitled to receive {in prof, toany equity sharehiolder), an amount equal to the higher of; (a) a pro rata porfion of the proceeds of the
Liquidation Event based on the sharehalding of such halder of Series €2 CEPS in the Company on a fully diluled basis; and {b) one times the Subscription Price on each Seres 03 CCPS held by such holder plus
any declared but unpaid dividends.

0.0001% € lative Compulsory C Pref Shares - Series D1 (Face Value- Rs. 355)

During the year ended March 31, 2022, the Company Issued fully paid up and subscibed 167,146 nos 0,0004% Cumulative C: F y O le P Shares (CCPS)- Series D1 of Face Value of Rs,
355 (Rupees Three Hundred Fifty Five) each at a premium of Re. 13,452.82 each.

Senes D1 CCPS may at any time be, fully or parlly converted into equity shares at the sole option and discretion of the CCPS holder, at the rate of 0.50 (One-half) fully paid equity share per 1 {One) Sedes D1
CCPS.

Senes D1 CCPS will carry voling fghts pan-passu with the equily shares, on an as-if converted basis.

Senes D1 CCPS shall have a maximum malurity period of 19 {Nineteen) years from the date of their issuance, on the expiry of which, the series D1 CCPS shall compulsorily and automaticaly cover info equity

shares,

The CCPS sharehalders have right to receive dividend priar ta equity share holders . The Series D1 CCPS bears a cumulative dividend rate of 0.0001% per annum. In addition {o the above, the holders of each aof
the Series D1 CCPS are enfitled to such p i dividends as distibuted 1o the other Shareholders of the Company, o on & Fully Diluted Basis,

In event of liquidation, Each of the holders of the Series D1 CEPS will be entitied to receive {in pref, o any equty shareholder), an amount egual fo the higher of: (@) & pro rala porion of the procesds of the

Liquidation Event based on the shareholding of such holder of Series D CCPS in the Coempany on a fully dluted basis: and (b) one limes the Subscription Price on each Series DT CGPS held by such holder plus
any declared bul unpaid dividends,
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0.0001% C ive Compulsery C iale P Shares - Series E (Face Value- Rs, 355)

During the year ended March 31, 2022, the Company issued fully paid up and subscrbed 348,207 nos D.0001% C ive Compulsory C ikzbe Pref Shares (CCPS)- Seres E of Face Value of Rs,
355 {Rupees Three Hundred Fifly Five) each at a premium of Rs, 33 673.48 each.

Series E CCPS may at any ime be, tully et partly converted inta equity shares at the sole eption and discretion of the GGPS holder, at the rale of 1 {One) fully paid equity share per 1 (One) Senes E CCPS,

Seres E CCPS will carry voling rights pari-passu with the equity shares, oh an as4f converied basis.

Sefies E CCPS shall have 2 maximum malurity period of 19 (Mineteen) years fram the date of their issuance, on the expiry of which, the senes £ CCPS shall compulsedly and automatically covert into equity
shares.

The CCPS shareholders have right to receive dividend prior lo equity share holders The Series E CCPS bears a cumlative dividend rata of 0.0001% per annurm. In addition to the above, the hoiders of each of
the Seres E CCPS are entitfled to such proponi i as distributed 1o the other Shareholders of the Company. determined on a Fully Diluted Basks.

In event of iguidation, Each of the holders of the Senes E CCPS will be entitied to receive (in pref fo any equity sh an amount equal to the kigher of: (a) a pro rata portion of the proceeds of the
Liquidation Event based on the shareholding of such holder of Seres E CCPS in the Company on a fully diluted basis: and (1) one times the Subscription Price on each Series € CCPS held by such holder plus
any declared but unpaid dividends.

0.0001% © lative C lsory © ible P Shares - Series E1 (Face Value- Rs. 355)
During the year ended March 31, 2023, the Company (ssued fully paid up and subscribed 74,841 nos 0.0001% C ive C : Lof ible Pref Shares (CCPS)- Serdes E1 of Face Value of Rs.
355 (Rupees Three Hundred Fifty Five) each at a premium of Rs. 33,673.48 each to the founders/, of Pickir Technol Private Limited in lieu of purchase of their stake in Pickr Technologies Private

Limited. The same got converted inte 58,530 equity shares of Face value of Rs. 10 each at a premium of Rs, 43,384.13 each durning the same financial year.

0.0001% C lative Compulsory C ible Pref Shares - Series E2 (Face Value- Rs. 355)

During the year ended March 31, 2023, the Company issued fully paid up and subscribed 58,783 nos 0.0001% Cumulative C sisory C ibla Pref; Shares (CCPS) Series E2 of Face Value of Rs,
355 (Rupees Three Hundred Filty Five) each at a premium of Rs, 43.035.13 gach.

Series E2 CCPS may at any time be, fully or partly converted Into equity shares at the sole option and discretion of the CCPS holder. at the rate of 1 {One) fully paid equity share per 1 {One) Series E CCPS.
Senes E2 COPS will carry veling rights pari-passu with the equity shares, on an as-f converted basis,

Series E2 CCPS shall have a maximum maturity peried of 18 (Nineteen) years from the date of their issuance, on the expiry of which, the series E2 GCPS shall compuisorily and aulomatically covert into equity
shares.

The CCPS shareholders have dght to receive dividend pror to equity share helders . The Senes E2 CCPS bears a curmulative dividend rate of D.0001% per annum, In addiion fo the above, the holders of each of
the Series E2 CCPS are enfitled to such dividends as di 1o the ether Shareholders of the Company, determined on a Fully Dililed Basis.

In event of liquidation, Each of the holders of the Seres E2 CCPS will be entilled to receive (in pref to any equity shareholder), an amount equal to the higher of: () a pro rata porion of fhe proceeds of the
Liguidation Evert based on the shareholding of such holder of Series £2 CCPS in the Company on a fully diluted basls; and (b) one times the Subscriplion Price on each Sedes E2 CCPS held by such holder plus
any declared bat unpaid dividends,

During the year ended March 31, 2024, the Company issued fully paid up and subscribed 20,913 nos 0.0001% C ive Ci Hsory Ci ibie Pref; Shares (CCPS)- Series E2 of Face Valus of Rs.
355 (Rupees Three Hundred Fifty Five) each al a premium of Rs. 43,038.13 each,

Exit Rights to Instruments entirely equity in nature
The Company has entered into shareholders agreemant with various privale squity investors for purchase of shares, As per the terms of Shateholders agreements. the Company will initiate & qualified Institutional
placement offer {'QIPOY) on a recognised slock exchange,

After the expiry of 28 months from the Inival Closing Date, if the Majority Investor Sharsholders determine, in their sole discretion, that the Company will not be able to satisly its obligation to consummate the

QIPG, the Majority lnvestor Shareholders shall have the right lo require the Company and the P fo complele a Liquidation Event,

1Mhe Company is unable to, for any reasan, complete a QIPO within the agreed period, then the Majority Investor Sharehalders shall have the fght fo issue a witten nofice {"Exit Notice™) to the Company and the
Promaters to peovide an exit to the Investor Shareholders who elect o participate in such exit {‘Electing Investor Shareholders™) specifying thal the Company and/or the Promoters shall provide an exit 1o such
Electing Investor St Iders in the ways, determined by the Majority Investor Shareholders, in their sole di i

In reference to Ind AS 32, as per previously entered CCPS agreements for series A lo D, the Exit Right clause stated that the Company and the promaler to provide an exit to the Investor shareholder who sloct to
participate in such exil a) buyback of shares held by electing investors b} sale of shares in favour of thid panty ¢) combination of (a) and (b}, The abave condition far nght by investor requinng the Company ta
buyback gives rise to classification of CCPS as Rablity, however the amendment was agreed with the investors as below:

Az per clause 24.9.1 of seres E — “This ag alory with the g Rights lefters and RTS agreements, sels out the entire agreement and understanding between the parties with respect to the subject
matter hereof and supersedes and extinguishes any and all prior di i o or ag ts between the paries hereto with respect to the matiers contained in the agreement,
whether in oral or wiitten”,

As per Clausa 13.4 Other exit options: - *if the company is unabie to. for any reason, complste a QIPO eor sale evant by drap dead date, then the Special Investor Super Majarity shall, after the Drop dead date ,
have the right to issue a witten notice to the Company and feunders o provide an exit to the Investors who elect to participate in such exit specifying that the Company andfor founders shall provide an exil to such
electing Investors by way of ssle of shares held by electing Investors in favour of third parly al a peice and on such terms acceptable 1o the Special Investor Super Majorty in their sole discretion”,

As perInd AS 32, a confract that contains an obligation for an entity 1o purchase its own equity instrumnents for cash or another financial asset gives fse to a financial Kabikty for the present value of the redemption
amount unless specified cthersise,

CCPS are converlible into fixed number of shares subjoct to anti dilution clause which is in the company’s control. Company may choose not to issue shares at lower price. If company falls to complate QIPO then
the company shall provide exit by way of sale in favour of third party. Now post issuance of series E, the Company do not have cbligation to buy back shares instead can amrange a (hird party lo puichase shares of
the Company,

Based on above and in accordance with IND AS 32, the Company is not obégated to purchase its own | and ingly has classifed the CCPS under “Equity”

(e} Shares issued for issue under options
For detaile of shares reserved for issue under the employee stock option (ESOP) plan of the Group, please refer note 31,

{f) Details of shares held by promaters
The Group is professionally managed and does not have an |dentifiable promotar.
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11{i) Other equity
Particulars

(i) Securities Premium

As at April 1, 2022

Add: Securities premium on issue of share capital

As at March 31, 2023

Add: Securities premium on issue of share capital

Add: Premium On conversion of Series B1 CCPS and Series C1 Into Equity shares during the year
Less: Transaction cost associated with issuance of shares

As at March 31, 2024

(ii) Share-based payment reserve

As at April 1, 2022

Add: On account of adjustments [Refer Note 40]

Restated Balance as on April 1, 2022

Add: Share based payment expense including options granted as part of deal [Refer note 21]
Less: Transfer to General Reserve on employee stock options lapsed during the year

As at March 31, 2023

Add: Share based payment expense [Refer note 31]

Add: Share based payment expense as part of full and final settlement of employee [Refer note 31)
Less: Transfer on account of loss of control in subsidiaries [Refer Note 41A)

As at March 31, 2024

(iii) Foreign Currency Translation Reserve
As at April 1, 2022

Add: Translation reserve created during the year
As at March 31, 2023

Add: Translation reserve created during the year
As at March 31, 2024

(iv) Capital Redemption Reserve

As at April 1, 2022

Add: Reserve created on buyback of shares
As at March 31, 2023

Add: Reserve created on buyback of shares
As at March 31, 2024

(v) General Reserve

As at April 1, 2022

Add: Transfer on account of ESOPs lapsed during the year
As at March 31, 2023

Add: Transfer on account of ESOPs lapsed during the year
As at March 31, 2024

(vi) Retained earnings (including Other Comprehensive Income)

As at April 1, 2022

Add: On account of adjustments [Refer Note 40]

Restated Balance as on April 1, 2022

Add: (Loss)/Profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the parent
Add: Other comprehensive income for the year

Less: Acquisition of Non-controlling interest

As at March 31, 2023

Add: (Loss)/Profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the parent
Add: Other comprehensive income for the year

Less: Transfer on account of loss of control in subsidiaries [Refer Note 41A]
Less: Adjustments pursuant to demerger of Pickrr Technologies [Refer Note 40A]
Less: Acquisition of Non-controlling interest

As at March 31, 2024

Total Other Equity attributable to equity holders of the parent
As at March 31, 2023
As at March 31, 2024

Amount

14,119.54
6,372.95

20,492.49
926.89
15.35
(8.82)

—ziame

325.03
310.31
635,33
1,135.90
(25.08)

1,746.15

1,926.46
227.43
(22.02)

3,878.02

(2.86)
2.97
0.11
1.05
1.15

(1,118.30)
(310.31)
(1,428.61)
(3,368.11)
(76.17)
(962.34)
(5,835.23)
(5.924.13)
(47.51)
22.02
(633.50)
(632.70)
{13,051.06)

16,428.81
12,279.33
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11(ii}

11(iii)

Non-Controlling Interest

Particulars Amount

As at April 1, 2022 45.29
Add: Addition on account of consolidation of subsidiaries during the year 246.80
Add/(Less). Share in Total Comprehensive income of subsidiaries during the year {224.97)
Addf(Less). Acquisition of Noan-controlling interest during the year (19.43)
As at March 31, 2023 47.69
Add/(Less). Share in Total Comprehensive income of subsidiaries during the year (27.68)
Add/(Less): Acquisition of Non-controlling interest during the year (2.40)
Add/(Less): Elimination of Non controlling interests due to loss of control in subsidiaries (17.12)
Add/(Less): Elimination of Non controlling interests pursuant to demeger of subsidiaries (0.49)

As at March 31, 2024 =

Nature and purpose of Reserves

Securities Premium
The amount represents the additional amount shareholders paid for their issued shares that was in excess of the par value of those shares, The same
can be utilised for the items specified under section 52 of Companies Act, 2013,

Equity Instruments through Other Comprehensive Income

The Group has elected to recognise changes in the fair value of certain investments in equity securities in other comprehensive income. These
changes are accumulated within the Equity instruments through Other Comprehensive Income within equity. The Group transfers amounts from this
reserve to retained earnings when the relevant equity securities are derecognised.

Share Based Payment Reserve
The share options-based payment reserve is used to recognise the grant date fair value of options and incentive shares issued to employees and
Senior management personnel respectively.

Exchange differences on translating the financial statements of a foreign operation
Exchange differences arising on translation of the foreign operations are recognised in other comprehensive income as described in accounting policy
and accumulated in a separate reserve within equity. The cumulative amount is reclassified to profit or loss when the net investment is disposed-off.

Retained Earnings

Retained earnings are the profits/(loss) that the Group has earnedfincurred till date, less any transfers to general reserve, dividends or other
distributions paid to shareholders, Retained earnings include re-measurement (loss)/gain on defined benefit plans, net of taxes that will not be
reclassified to Statement of Profit and Loss.

Capital Redemption Reserce

As per the provisions of Companies Act, 2013, Capital redemption reserve is created when a Group purchases its own shares out of free reserves or
securities premium. A sum equal to the nominal value of the shares so purchased is transferred to capital redemption reserve. The reserve can be
utilised in accordance with the provisions of Section 69 of Companies Act, 2013,

General Reserve
The Group appropriates a portion to general reserves out of the profits voluntarily to meet future contingencies. The said reserve is available for
payment of dividend to the shareholders as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013,

(This space has been inlentionally left blank)
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12

12(ij) Borrowings

12(ii)

12(iii)

Financial Liabilities

As at As at
Particulars
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2033
{restated*)
Current
Others
Bank Overdraft (secured) 2,132.75 1,718.08
Total 2,132.75 1,718.08
Total current 2,132.76 1,718.08
Notes:

a) The company has outstanding Bank overdraft facility of Rs, 2,132,75 millions (March 31, 2023 - 1718.08 millions) availed from |CICI Bank, Kotak Mahindra Bank,
Yes Bank and HDFC Bank for OD-FD facibity with interest rate ranging between 4.50% to 7.50% and tenure being upto twelve months.

b) As at March 31, 2024, the Company had available Rs. 536.75 millions (March 31, 2023 - Rs, 825.12 millions) of undrawn ot

d borrowing facilit

c} As at March 31, 2024, the Company has fixed deposits fien of Rs, 2,674.91 millions (March 31, 2023 - Rs. 2,711.83 millions) marked for Kotsk Mahindra Bank,

ICICI Bank, HOFC Bank, Axis Bank, Yes Bank and American Express for OD-FD facility and Corporate Credit cards,

Trade payables
As at
As at
March 21, 2023
March 31, 2024 {restated?)
Trade payables
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises [Refer Mote 28) 98.82 12278
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 1,921.42 1,865.61
Total 2,020.24 1,988.39
Trade payables are non-inferest bearing and are normally settled on 0-60 days terms.
For explanations on the Group's credit risk management processes, refer note 38,
Fer terms and conditions relating to related party payables, refer note 34,
Trade Payable ageing schedule
As at March 31, 2024
Particulars Qutstanding for following periods from transaction date Total
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years
Total outstaru_:hng dues of micro enterprises and 98,82 < < a 9882
small enterprises
Toltal outstanding dues of creditors other than micro
enterprises and small enterprises 914.83 i ia.68
Acerued Expenses 1,006.7¢ - - - 1,006.789
Total 2,020.24 - - - 2!020‘24
As at March 31, 2023
Particulars o ding for foll - iods from b fion date Total
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and _
small enterprises 12278 . Ll
Total o_utslandlng dues of crei_:hlors other than micro 166719 248 . _ 1.669.65
enterprises and small enterprises
Accrued Expenses 195.96 - - = 185.96
Total 1,985.92 2.46 - - 1,988.39
Other Financial Liabilities
As at
As at
March 31, 2024 March 313023
[restated*)
Other Financial Liabilities Measured at Amortised Cost
Current
a) Amount payable, collected on behalf of the customers
- Amount payable, collecled on behalf of the customers 712,57 630,16
712.57 630.16
b) Employee benefit payable [Refer Note 34] 143.57 431.79
143.57 431.79
c) Consideration payable pursuant to Demerger [Refer Note 404] 323.08 -
323.08 -
d) Security deposit payable - 0.78
- 0.79
Total Other Current financial liabilities 1,179.22 1.062.74
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13 Provisions

As at
Marc:;:tznz i March 31, 2023
' ( )
Non-current
Provision for Gratuity [Refer Note 28] 53.06 55.81
Provision for compensated absences - -
Total Non-current Provisions 53.068 55.81
Current
Provision for Gratuity [Refer Note 28] 10.75 8,75
Provision for compensated absences 79.88 60.22
Total Current Provisions 90.63 68.97
14 Other current liabilities
As at Al

March 31, 2023

(r 1)

March 31, 2024

a) Contract liabilities [Refer note 15(b]]

(i) Customers balance in wallet 1,060.76 749.83
{iiy Deferred revenue 12.14 545
(i) Advance from customers - 38.47
1,072.90 797.75

b} Statutory dues payabie® 7521 95.91
75.21 95.91

¢} Provision for Income lax demand - 18.75
- 18.75

Total Other current liabilities 1,148.11 912.41

* Statutory dues mainly includes tax deducted at source, goods and service lax, provident fund, national pension scheme, professionzl tax, labour welfare fund and
employee state insurance.

{This space has been infentionally left blank)
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15

(a)

(b)

16

17

18

Revenue from Operations

Disaggregated revenue information
Set out below is the disaggregation of the Group's revenue from operations:

For the year ended

) For the year ended
Particulars March 34, 2024 M?rch 1, ?c;za
(r
Sale of services
Revenue from Merchant Solutions 13,143.07 10,880.17
Sale of goods
Revenue from sale of traded goods 16.69 8.10
Total revenue from operations 13,159,76 10,888.27
Revenue on the basis of geographical locati
For the year ended
Particulars e o o March 31, 2023
' (restated*)

India 13,104,956 10,884.88
Outside India 54.80 3.38
Total revenue from operations 13,159.76 10,888.27

Timing of revenue recognition

For the year ended

For the year ended

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
(restated*)
Services rendered at a point in time 13,075.61 10,772.87
Services renderad over time 67.46 107,24
Goods Transferred at a point in time 16.69 8.02
Total revenue from operations 13,159.76 10,888.27
Contract balances
The following table provides information about receivables, contracls assels, and contract lisbilities fram contracts with customers,
As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
(restated’) { d')
Trade receivables [Refer note B(ii)] 1,170.59 507.52
Contract assets [Refer note 8(v)] §20.58 685.77
Contract hiabilities [Refer note 14{a}) (1.072.90) (797.75)

Other income

Particulars

For the year ended

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

March 31, 2024 (restated)
16.1 Finance Income
Interest income on:
- Bank deposits al amortised cost 354,71 362,41
- Income tax refund 11.24 278
- Unwinding of discount on securily deposits paid at amortised cost 533 3.06
Total Finance Income (A} 371,28 368,26
16.2 Other Income
Profil on disposal of Property, plant and equipment - 0.02
Gain on modification { termination of lease contracts 15,61 -
Fair value gain on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss 942 {1.92)
Gainl{loss) on sale of financial instrumentts at fair valus through profit or loss 3.33 4,86
Liability Written back 8.18 (0.00)
Miscellaneous Income 10.74 7.27
Total Other Income (B) 47.28 10.23
Grand Total (A+B) 418.57 378.49

Cost of Merchant Solutions

For the year ended

For the year ended

Particulars March 31, 2024 M?rch 31, z::zs
Cost of Merchant Solutions 10,070.37 8,344.77
10,070.37 8,344.77

Purchase of traded goods
For the year ended
Particulars For the year ended March 31, 2023
March 31, 2024
(restated")

Traded goods (Packing Material) [Refer Note 7) 56.67 41,58
55.67 41.58
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19

20

21

22

Changes in inventories of traded goods

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

{ d*)

As at the end of the year

Traded goods (Packing Material) [Refer Note 7] (14.72) (12.13)
As at the beginning of the year

Traded goods (Packing Material) [Refer Note 7 1213 4.34
Increase!(Decrease) in Inventories of Traded Goods {2.59) (7.79)
Employee benefits

For the year ended
For the year ended
Particulars March 31, 2024 Maz!ch‘:!d, il:za
Salaries, wages and bonus 223154 2,409.20
Contribution to provident and other funds [Refer Note 29(A)] 51.86 46.91
Share Based Payment Expense [Refer Note 31] 1,926.46 910.08
Graluity expense [Refer Note 29(B)] 2361 2272
Staff welfare expenses 74.44 48.73
4,307.91 3,437.65

Depreciation and amortization ex;
For the year ended
Particulars For the year ended March 31, 2023
March 31, 2024
(restated")

Depreciation of Property, plart and eguipments (refer note 3) 217.38 8524
Amaortisation of Intangible assets (refer note 4) 307.30 171.40
Depreciation of Right-of-use assets (refer note 30) 23510 157.21

759.78 413.85

Other expenses

For the year ended

For the year ended

Particulars March 31, 2024 M?rch‘31.42'l:;23
r

Rent [Refer Note 30] 6.69 12.73
Power and Fuel 30.55 1573
Rates and Taxes 9.83 12.18
Marketing Expenses 188.63 235.90
Insurance 23.20 12.74
Repair and Maintenance

Plant and Machinery 9.60 B13

Building 3012 23,57
Travelling and Conveyance 54,33 39.16
Server and Communication Costs 403.29 391.70
Payment Gateway Charges 4817 56,789
Warehousing Management expenses 241.88 350,98
Outsourced Support Cost 58.53 74.68
Telephone and Internet Charges 2274 24,95
Legal and Professional Fees 148.20 175.08
Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible assets written off B 0.21
Loss on dispesal of property, plant and equipment 2.45 -
Payment 1o Auditar 10.10 525
Recruitment Charges 13.60 21.62
Recoverables written off 4.26 -
Foreign Exchange Fluctuations Loss (Net) 4.08 0.31
Provision for Doubtful Debts {net) 197,73 280.82
Provision for Doubtful Recoverables 117.42 120.18
Facility Expenses 20,70 28.98
Miscellaneous Expenses 14,86 5.24
Total 1,662.07 1,897,02
Note
(i) Payment to auditors:
Statutory Audit Fees .10 520
Out of Pocket Expenses 1.00 0.05

10.10 5,25
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23 Finance costs

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

For the year ended
March 31, 2023
7 d*)

L}

Interest at amortised cost

- Inlerest on Bank Overdraft

- Interest on lease liabilities (refer note 30)
Bank Charges

241 Exceptional items ({loss)/gai

131.92 46,22
98.30 49.70
2.92 2.36
233.14 98.28

For the year ended

For the year ended

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
(restated?)
Amaortisation/impairment of Intangible assets [Refer Note 4] (753.15) (519.98}
Profit/{Loss) on sale of investment in subsidiaries [Refer Note 414] 92.34 -
Provision for impairment of Amount Recoverable from Subsidiaries [Refer Note G{vi{e)] (15.56) -
Provision for impairment in value of Goodwill [Refer Note 4] {1,767.42) -
Provision for impairment in value of Investment in associate [Refer Note 5) - (111.60)
(2,443.79) {631.58)

24.2 Components of Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)

Particulars

For the year ended
December 31, 2023

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

{a) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods:
Re-measurement (loss)igain on defined benefit plans

Gainfloss) on sale of equity & preference instruments carried at FVTOCI
Changes in fair value of equity & preference instruments carried at FVTOCI

(b) Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods:
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations

25 (Loss)/Earning per share (EPS)

5.31 1.46
0.50 {19.90)
(52.98) (54.75)
(0.34) (2.97)
{47.51) (76.16)

Basic earnings per equily share has been computed by dividing net profit after tax by the weighled average number of equily shares outstanding for the year.
Diluted earnings per equity share has been computed using the weighted average number of equity shares and dilutive potential equity shares cutstanding during

the year.

The foliowing reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations:

Particulars Units

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

Total (Loss)/Prafit attributable to equity holders Rs. Millions
of the parent

Weighted average number of equity shares for Numbers
calculating Basic EPS

Weighted average number of equity shares for Numbers
calculating Diluted EPS

Basic EPS [Nominal valus Rs, 10 per share Rs.
{March 31, 2023 - Rs. 10 per share)]

Diluted EPS [Nominal value Rs. 10 per share Rs.

{March 31, 2023 - Rs, 10 per share)]

(5,971.84)
21,22,521
21,22,521
(2,813.47)

(2,813.47)

(3.444.27)
20,17,866
20,17,866
{1.706.89)

{1,706.89)

There are potential equity shares as on March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023 in the form of stock options issued. As these are sntidilutive, they are ignored in the
caleulation of diluted loss per share and accerdingly the diluted loss per share is the same as basic loss per share
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26 Significant accounting judg ts, estimates and ptions

The preparation of the financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reporied amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncerlainty about these assumptions and estimates could
result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

Judgements
In the process of applying the accounting policies, management has made the following judgements, which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in
the consolidated financial statements:

Determining the lease term of contracts with renewal and termination options = Group as lessee
The Group determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with any periods covered by an option to extend the lease if it is reasonably certain
to be exercised, or any periods covered by an option to terminate the |ease, if it is reasonably certain not to be exercised.

The Group has several lease contracts that include extension and termination optians. The Group applies judgement in evaluating whether it is reasonably certain wheiher
or not to exercise the option to renew or terminate the lease. Thal is, it considers all relevant factors that create an economic incenfive for it lo exercise either the renewal
or termination. After the commencement date, the Group reassesses the lease term if there is a significant event or change in circumstances that is within its control and
affects its ability to exercise or not to exercise the option to renew or to terminate (e.g., construction of significant leasehold improvements or significant customisation to
the leased asset).

The Group included the renewal period as part of the lease term for leases of corporate offices and warehousing facilities with shorter non-cancellable peried (i.e., three ta
five years). The Group typically exercises its option to renew for these leases because there will be a significant negative effect cn operations if a replacement asset is rot
readily available. The renewal periods for leases with longer non-cancellable periods (i.e., 10 to 15 years) are not included as part of the lease term as these are not
reasonably certain to be exercised. Furthermore, the periods covered by termination options are included as part of the lease term only when they are reasonably certain
not to be exercised.

Estimates and ptions

The key assumptions concemning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are described below. The Group based its assumptions and estimates on
parameters available when the financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to
market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Group. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

Impairment of Non-fi ial assets

Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal
and its value in use, The fair value less costs of disposal calculation is based on available data from binding sales transactions, conducted at arm's length, for similar
assets or observable market prices less incremental costs for disposing of the asset. The value in use calculation is based on a DCF model. The cash flows are derived
from the budget for the next five years and do not include restructuring activities that the Group is not yet committed to or significant future investments that will enhance
the asset's performance of the CGU being tested. The recoverable amount is sensitive to the discount rate used for the DCF model as well as the expected future cash-
inflows and the growth rate used for extrapolation purposes. These estimates are most relevant to goodwill and other intangibles with indefinite useful lives recognised by
the Gronn

Share Based Payments

Employees and Senior management personnel of the Group receive remuneration in the form of share based payment transactions, whereby employees render services
as consideration for equity instruments (equity-settled transactions). In accordance with the Ind AS 102 Share Based Payments, the cost of equity-settled transactions is
measured using the fair value method. The cumulative expense recognized for equity-settled transactions at each reporting date until the vesting date reflects the extent to
which the vesting period has expired and the Group's best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The expense or credit recognized in the
statement of profit and loss for a period represents the movement in cumulative expense recognized as at the beginning and end of that period and is recognized in
employee benefits expense.

Defined benefit plans {gratuity benefits)

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and the present value of the gratuity obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves
making various assumptions that may differ from aclual developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and
mortality rates, Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation Is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions.
All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate, In determining the appropriate discount rate for plans operated, the management considers the interest rates of
government bonds in currencies consistent with the currencies of the post-employment benefit obligation.

The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality table . The mortality table tend to change only at interval in response to demographic changes. Future salary
increases and gratuity increases are based on expected future inflation rates. Further details about gratuity obligations are given in note 29.

Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value
is measured using valuation technigues including the DCF model. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not
feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair values. Judgements include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes
in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments.
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Useful life of Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and impairment loss, if any. Such cost includes the cost of replacing par of the plant and
equipment. When significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group depreciates them separately based on their specific useful
lives. Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria
are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

Capital work in progress s stated at cost, net of accumulated impairment loss, if any.

Depreciation on all property plant and equipment are provided on a written-down value method based on the estimated useful life of the asset. The management has
estimated the useful lives and residual values of all property, plant and equipment and adopted useful lives based on management's assessment of their respective
economic useful lives. The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted
prospectively, if appropriate. Depreciation on the assets purchased during the year is provided on pro-rata basis from the date of purchase of the assets, An item of
property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recoanised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or
disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) s
included in the income statement when the asset is derecognised.

Impairment of Goodwill and Other Intangible assets

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for the purpose of impairment testing. The allocation is made to those cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from
the business combination in which the goodwill arose. The units are identified at the lowest level at which goodwill is monitored.

Other assets are fested annually for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment
loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash
inflows which are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets (cash-generating units).

An impairment |oss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. Such a reversal is made only to the extent that the
assel's carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation ar amortisation, if no impairment loss had been
recognised.

Loss allowance on trade receivables

The Group uses a provision matrix to caleulate ECLs for trade receivables and contract assets. The provision rates are based on days past due of various customers that
have similar loss patterns (i.e., by geography, product type, customer type and rating, and coverage by letters of credit and other forms of credit insurance). The provision
matrix is initially based on the Group's historical observed default rates. The Group will calibrate the matrix to adjust the historical credit loss experience with forward-
looking information. For instance, if forecast economic conditions (i.e., gross domestic product) are expected to deteriorate over the next year which can lead to an
increased number of defaults in the manufacturing sector, the historical default rates are adjusted. At every reporting date, the historical observed default rates are updated
and changes in the forward-looking estimates are lysed, The 1ent of the correlation between historical observed defaull rates, forecast economic conditions and
ECLs is a significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes in circumstances and of forecast economic conditions. The Group's historical credit loss
experience and forecast of economic conditions may also not be representative of customer's actual default in the future. The Group considers a financial asset in default
when contractual payments are 180 days past due. However, in certain cases, the Group may also consider a financial asset to be in default when internal or external
information indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking inte account any credit enhancements held by the
Group. A financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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28

Corporate Social Responsibility

Pursuant to the requirement of section 135 of Companies Act, 2013 and rules thereon and further guidance note issued by ICAI during
the year on Accounting for expenditure on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) activities, the gross amount required to be spent by
the Group towards CSR expenditure amounts to Nil (March 31, 2023: Nil).

Details of dues to micro and small enterprises as defined under MSMED Act 2006 [Refer Note 12(ii)]

The Group, has during the year, initiated the process of identification of its suppliers rendering their status under The Micro, Small and
Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 and hence disclosures, if any, relating to amount unpaid as at the year end along with
interest paid/payable as required under the said Act have been provided in the books of accounts. Based on the information available
with the Group there are following principle/interest amount due to micro, small and medium enterprises.

As at As at

FATHRR March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Principal amount due to suppliers registered under the 98.82 122,78
MSMED Act and remaining unpaid as at year end

Interest due to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act - -
and remaining unpaid as at year end

Principal amounts paid to suppliers registered under the - -
MSMED Act, beyond the appointed day during the year

Interest paid, other than under Section 16 of MSMED Act, to - -
suppliers registered under the MSMED Act, beyond the

appointed day during the year

Interest paid, under Section 16 of MSMED Act, to suppliers - -
registered under the MSMED Act, beyond the appointed

day during the year

Interest due and payable towards suppliers registered under - -
MSMED Act, for payments already made

Further interest remaining due and payable for earlier years - -

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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29 Employee Benefits

A. Defined Contribution Plans

The Group makes contribution towards Provident Fund, Employee State [nsurance Scheme, Labour Welfare Fund and Pension Scheme to the defined

contribution plans for eligible employees.

The Group has charged the following costs in Contribution to Provident Fund and Other Funds in the Statement of Profit and Loss:-

For the year ended For the year ended

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Employer's contribution to Provident fund and pension schemes 39.06 37.94
Employer's contribution to Employees State Insurance 0.01 0.01
Employer's contribution to Employees National Pension System 12.78 8.95
Total 51.85 46.91

. Defined Benefit Plans

Gratuity:

The gratuity plan is governed by the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Under the Act, employees who have completed five years of service are entitled to
specific benefit. The level of benefit provided depends on the member's length of service and salary retirement age. The employee is enfitled to a
benefit equivalent to 15 days salary last drawn for each completed year of service with part thereof in excess of six months subject to maximum limit of
INR 2 million. The same is payable on termination of service or retirement or death whichever is earlier.

The present value of the obligation under such defined benefit plan is determined based on an actuarial valuation as at the reporting date using the
projected unit credit method, which recognises each year of service as giving rise to additional unit of employee benefit entitliement and measures each
unit separately to build up the final obligation. The obligations are measured at the present value of the estimated future cash flows. The discount rate
used for determining the present value of the obligation under defined benefit plans is based on the market yields on Government bonds as at the date

of actuarial valuation. Actuarial gains and losses (net of tax) are recognised immediately in the Other Comprehensive Income (OCI).

The Group has a unfunded defined benefit gratuity plan.

The following tables summarise the components of net benefit expense recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and amounts

recognised in the consolidated balance sheet:

(i) Benefit liability
As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
(restated*)
Present value of obligation at beginning of the year 64.56 32.43
Interest cost 4.40 3.47
Current service cost 19.21 19.25
Actuarial loss/(gain) on obligation
- Economic assumptions 3.09 (3.49)
- Demographic assumptions 0.44 (0.15)
- Experience adjustment (8.84) 2.18
Benefits paid (17.23) (3.16)
Adjustment on acccount of consolidation of subsidiaries (1.83) 14.05
Present value of obligation at the closing of the year 63.81 64.56
= Current Portion 10.75 8.75
- Non-current Portion 53.06 55.81
(ii) Gratuity Cost recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss:-
For the year ended Fg;;l::hy::r: : :;d
March 31, 2024 (restated")
Current service cost 18.21 19.25
Net interest on net defined benefit liability / (asset) 4.40 3.47
Expense recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss* 23.61 22.72
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i)

‘v,

v

vi)

Gratuity Cost recognised through Other Comprehensive Income:-

For the year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2023
March 31, 2024 (restated")
Actuarial (gains) / losses
- change in financial assumptions 3.08 (3.49)
- change in demographic assumptions 0.44 (0.15)
- experience variance (i.e. Actual experience vs assumptions) (8.84) 2.18
(5.31) (1.46)
The principal actuarial assumptions used for estimating the Group's defined benefit obligations are set out below:
As at
As at
March 31,2024 ~March 31,2023
(restated*)
Discount rate 7.27% 7.36% - 7.39%
Future salary increase 10% 7% - 10%
Average expected future working life (years) 26.34 - 30.46 26.59 - 30.49
Withdrawal rate (per annum)
- Up to 30 years 30% 2% - 30%
- From 31 years to 44 years 28% 2% - 28%
- From 44 years to 58 years 25% 2% - 25%
*Indian Assured Lives Mortality (2012-14) Ultimate represents published mortality table used for mortality assumption.
A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumption is as shown below:
As at
As at
March 31,2024 ~ March 31,2023
(restated*)
Impact of the change in discount rate
a) Impact due to increase of 0.50 % (1.77) (2.90)
b) Impact due to decrease of 0.50 % 1.86 3.24
Impact of the change in salary increase
a) Impact due to increase of 0.50 % 1.51 2.80
b) Impact due to decrease of 0.50 % (1.48) (2.55)

The sensitivity analyses above have been determined based on a method that extrapolates the impact on the defined benefit obligation as a result of
reasonable changes in key assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting year. These analysis are based on a change in a significant assumption,
keeping all other assumptions constant and may not be representative of an actual change in the defined benefit obligation as it is unlikely that
changes in assumptions would occur in isolation of one another.

The average duration of the defined benefit plan obligation at the end of the reporting year is 2.96 years (March 31, 2023 - 11 years).

The following payments are expected contributions to the defined benefit obligation in future years:

As at ot
March 31, 2023
March 31, 2024 (restated")
Within the next 12 months (next annual reporting period) 5.35 8.76
Between 1 and 5 years 35.59 25.52
Between 5 and 10 years 22.87 30.28

Beyond 10 years - -
Total expected payments 63.81 64.56
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Leases
Group as a Lessee

The Group has lease contracts for warehouses and office spaces used in its operations. These generally have lease terms between 1 and 8 years..
The Group's obligations under its leases are secured by the lessor’s title to the leased assets. There are several lease contracts that include

extension and termination options and variable lease payments, which are further discussed below.

The Group also has certain leases contracts for office premises and certain facilities with lease terms of 12 months or less and leases of office
premises and certain facilities with low value. The Company applies the ‘short-term lease' and ‘lease of low-value assets' recognition exemptions for

these |eases.

Set out below are the carrying amounts of right-of-use assets recognised and the movements during the year:

Particulars Total

As at April 1, 2022 352,65
Additions Consequent to Consolidation of Subsidiaries 97.30
Additions 676.82
Depreciation expense (157.21)
As at March 31, 2023 969.57
Additions 351,14
Deletions (124.87)
Depreciation expense (235.10)
As at March 31, 2024 960.73
Set out below are the carrying amounts of lease liabilities recognised and the movements during the year:

Particulars Total

As at April 1, 2022 360.63
Additions Conseguent to Consolidation of Subsidiaries 97.70
Additions 653.82
Accretion of interest 49,70
Payments (167.01)
As at March 31, 2023 994.84
Additions 341.04
Deletions (135.43)
Accretion of interest 98.30
Payments (272.35)

As at March 31, 2024

1,026.40
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The following is the break-up of current and non-current lease liabilities:

Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Lease Liabilities (Non-current) 845.75 814.78
Lease Liabilities (Current) 180.65 180.06
Total 1,026.40 994.84

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in Note 38.

The effective interest rate for lease liabilities is 9.15%, with maturity between 2024-2032.

The following are the amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss:

Particulars

As at March 31, 2024

As at March 31, 2023

Depreciation expense of right-of-use assets

Interest expense on lease ligbilities

Expense relating to short-term leases (included in other expenses)
Variable lease payments (included in other expenses)

Total amount recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss

23510 157.21
98.30 49.70
58.16 9.31

118.41 247.83

509.97 464.05

The Group have several lease contracts that include extension and termination options. These options are negotiated by management to provide
flexibility in managing the leased-asset portfolio and align with the Company's business needs. Management exercises significant judgement in
determining whether these extension and termination options are reasonably certain to be exercised (refer note 26).
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31 Share-based payments

(a) Stock Options based on non-market conditions

During the year ended March 31, 2017, the Holding company established Bigfoot Employee Stock Option Plan 2016 ("ESOP 2016") and the
same was approved by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and came into existence w.e.f August 16, 2016. The plan was set up
so as fo offer and grant, for the benefit of employees (excluding promoters and directors) of the Holding Company, as specified in the said
scheme, options of the Holding Company in one or more tranches, and on such terms and conditions as may be fixed or determined by the

Board, in accordance with the ESOP scheme.

During the year ended March 31, 2023, the Holding company established Bigfoot Acquired Businesses Employee Stock Option Plan 2022
("ESOP 2022") and the same was approved by the shareholders in their meeting on 17th June 2022 (“EGM Meeting") authorizing the Board
to issue Employee Stock Options fo the employees under ESOP 2022, The plan was set up so as to offer and grant, for the benefit of the
Holding company, its Subsidiary in or outside India, and its Holding Company if any, and any successor Company thereof and may be
granted to the employees of the Holding company, or of its Subsidiary Company(ies), or its Holding Company, as determined by the Board at
its sole discretion, options of the Company in one or more tranches, and on such terms and conditions as may be fixed or determined by the

Board, in accordance with the ESOP scheme.

The options granted under the aforesaid schemes shall vest not less than one year and not more than four years from the date of grant of

options.

The following table illustrates the number and weighted average exercise prices (WAEP) of and movements in, stock options during the

year:
For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 (restated*)
Number of options | WAEP (in Rs.) Number of options WAEP (in Rs.)

Outstanding at the beginning of the year 1,02,557 832 81,483 1,066
Granted during the year 42,562 10 25,435 10
Exercised during the year - - - -
Unvested options lapsed during the year (2,113) 72 (4,361) 402
Outstanding at the end of the year 1,43,007 599 1,02,557 832
Exercisable at the end of the year 1,08,712 477 55,258 560

The weighted average fair value for the stock options granted during the year is Rs. 44,131.41 (March 31, 2023 - Rs. 34,020.95).

The following tables list the inputs 1o the models used for the Stock option plans for the year ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023

respectively:
As at
As at

Particulars March 31, 2023

March 31, 2024 (restated®)
Expected volatility (%) 38.66% to 39.54% 42.12%
Risk free Interest rate (%) 6.92% 6.35%
Expected remaining life of share options (in years) 6 to O years 6 to 9 years
Weighted average share price (in Rs.) Rs. 44,137.50 Rs. 34,028.48
Model used Black-Scholes Option Black-Scholes Option

Pricing Model Pricing Model

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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(b) Stock Options based on market conditions
(i) During the year ended March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2021, the Holding company granted Incentive shares under the Series C2 CCPS

and Series D1 CCPS Shareholders agreements respectively. Such options are milestone based and vesting of such options is dependent
upon achievement of milestones, subject to a maximum period of four years from the date of grant.

The following table illustrates the number and weighted average exercise prices (WAEP) of and movements in, Incentive shares during the

year:
For the year ended For the year ended

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 (restated®)
Number of options | WAEP (in Rs.) Number of options WAEP (in Rs.)

Outstanding at the beginning of the year 24,399 - 24,399

Granted during the year - - -

Exercised during the year - - -

Unvested options lapsed during the year - - -

Outstanding at the end of the year 24,399 - 24,399

Exercisable at the end of the year 24,399 - 24,399

The following tables list the inputs to the models used for the Incentive shares for the year ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023

respectively:

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2024

As at

March 31, 2023

(restated*)

Expected volatility (%)

35.39% 1o 50.31%

35.39% to 50.31%

Risk free Interest rate (%) 3.60% 10 6.19% 3.60% to 6.19%
Expected remaining life of share options (in years) Nil Nil
Weighted average share price (in Rs.) Rs. 7,597.62 Rs. 7,597.62

Model used

Monte Carlo simulation

Monte Carlo simulation

(ii) During the year ended March 31, 2022, the Holding company granted Incentive shares under the Series E Shareholders agreement,

Such options are milestone based and vesting of such options is dependent upon achievement of milestones, subject to @ maximum period

of five years from the date of grant.

The following table illustrates the number and weighted average exercise prices (WAEP) of and movements in, Incentive shares during the

year:
For the year ended For the year ended

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 (restated*)
Number of options | WAEP (in Rs.) Number of options WAEP (in Rs.)

Outstanding at the beginning of the year 1,03,700 - 1,03,700

Granted during the year - - -

Exercised during the year 3 - -

Unvested options lapsed during the year - - -

Outstanding at the end of the year 1,03,700 - 1,03,700

Exercisable at the end of the year - - -

The following tables list the inputs to the models used for the Incentive shares for the year ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023

respectively:

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2024

As at

March 31, 2023

(restated*)

Expected volatility (%)

42.37% to 53.58%

42.37% to 53.58%

Risk free Interest rate (%) 3.90% to 5.72% 3.90% to 5.72%
Expected remaining life of share options (in years) 2.67 years 3.67 years
Weighted average share price (in Rs.) Rs. 26,508.07 Rs. 26,508.07

Model used

Monte Carlo simulation

Monte Carlo simulation
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(c) Total expense arising from share based payment transaction for the year is Rs. 1,926.46 millions (March 31, 2023 - Rs. 910,09 millions) has
been charged to Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss.
Further, Share based payment reserve created as part of full and final settlement of employee is Rs. 227.43 millions (March 31, 2023 - Nil).

(d) The expected life of the share options is based on historical data and current expectations and is not necessarily indicative of exercise
patterns that may occur. The expected volatility reflects the assumption that the historical volatility over a period similar to the life of the
options is indicative of future trends, which may also not necessarily be the actual outcome.
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33

Current Tax and Deferred Tax

Provision for current tax is not required to be made as the Group has business losses during the year and also has brought forward losses.
Since, it is not probable that the Group will generate future taxable profits, no deferred tax asset has been recognized on tax losses.

Commitments and Contingent liabilities

a. Commitments

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for:
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for as at March 31, 2024 - Nil (March 31, 2023 - Nil)

b. Contingent Liabilities

Claims against the company not acknowledged as debts

Name of the statute

Nature of the dues

Amount
(in Rs. Million}

Period to which the
amount relates

Forum where the
dispute is pending

Income Tax Act, 1961 [Refer Footnote (i)]

Income Tax

2.50

AY 2018-19

Commissioner of Income
Tax (Appeals)

Footnote (i) : Order of TDS Officer dated March 30, 2022 u/s 201 & 201(1A) was issued having demand of Rs. 2.50 million by INT TAX 11)(2)
Delhi. The Group has filed an Appeal against this Demand with CIT(A). The management believes that the Group has good chances of success
in the above mentioned matter and hence, no provision is considered necessary.
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A. Name of Related parties and related party relationship

B. Details of Transactions and Balances with Related parties:

Related Party Transacti

Related Parties under Ind AS 24

Subsidiaries and Associate

Shiprocket Pte Lid.

Shiprocket DMCC

Shiprockel Arabia for Information Technology
Swiftly Commerce Tech Private Limited (formerly
known as Wigzo Technologies Private Limited)
Swiflly Commerce Tech Canada Inc (formerly known
as Wigzo Technologies Canada Inc.)

Pickrr Technologies Privale Limited

Shiprockel Omuni Private Limited (formerly known
as Arvind Internet Limited)

Shiprockel Merchanl App Private Limited
Shiprocket Inc

Logibricks Technologies Private Limited

Key Management Personnel
Saahil Goel

Gautam Kapoor

Rajan Jitendra Mehra

Pankaj Makkar

Arjun Singh Ravinder Singh Sethi
Vaidhehi Ravindran

Rohit Sood

Nishant Chandra

Kumar Tanmay

Nidhi Mishra

Deepa Kapoor

Whaolly-owned Subsidiary
Step-down Subsidiary (Whally Owned Subsidiary of Shiprocket Pte Lid,)
Slep-down Subsidiary (Wholly Owned Subsidiary of Shiprocket DMCC)

Subsidiary Company (Control il September 1, 2023)

Step-down Subsidiary (Wholly Ovmed Subsidiary of Wigzo Technologies Private
Limited) (Control till September 1, 2023)

Subsidiary Company (w.e.f. June 30, 2022 )
Wholly-owned Subsidiary ( w.e.f. October 31, 2022 )

Whaolly-owned Subsidiary ( w.ed. May 1, 2023)
Wholly-owned Subsidiary ( w.e.d. September 12, 2023}
Associate Company

Director and Chief Executive Officer

Director

Nominee Director

Mominee Director

Meminee Director

Mominee Director

Nominee Director (w.e.f. October 17, 2023)
Mon-Executive Director

Chief Financial Officer

Company Secratary (resigned w.e.f. June 2, 2023)
Company Secretary (w.e.f. August 29, 2023)

. For the year ended Forthe year ended

e March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

(i) Issue of share capital
Saahil Goel 8.64 -
Gautam Kapoor 8.64 £

(i) Remuneration of key managerial personnel*
Saahil Goel 33.40 14.27
Gautam Kapoor 34.39 14.87
Kumar Tanmay 22.03 20,25
Nidhi Mishra 0.38 0.92
Deepa Kapoor 3.02 =
‘Excludes employer’s contribution to provident fund and gratuily and share based payment expense

€. Outstanding Balances:
" As at As at
Paiculas March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
{A) Payable at year end

(i) Other Financial liabilities
Saahil Goel 16.75 -
Gautam Kapoor 16.75 -
Kumar Tanmay 0.86 -
Nidhi Mishra - -
Deepa Kapoor 0.44 5

D. Terms and Conditions of transactions with related parties

35

Transactions relaling to proceeds from issuance of share capital were on the sarme terms and conditions that applied to other shareholders,
Transactions with related parties during the year were based on terms that would be available to third parties. All ather transactions were made in ordinary course of business and

at arm’s length price.

All outstanding balances are unsecured and are repayable in cash,

Segment Information

The Group is engaged in providing services related to Merchant solutions in a single segment. Based on "Management Approach”, as d
Segments. the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM) evaluates the performance and allocales resources based on the analysis of pe
cperalions are, therefore, considered to constitute a single segment in the context of Ind AS 108 — Operating Segments.

n Tnd-AS 108 — Operaling
aled bf liie Group as a whole. Its
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36 Fair values
Set out below, is a comparison by class of the carrying amounts and fair value of the Group's financial instruments, including those with carrying amounts that are
reasonzable approximations of fair values:
Financial Instruments by category
The carrying value and fair value of financial instruments by categories as of March 31, 2024 were as follows:

Financial assets/liabilities at fair value through

Particulars Note No. Amortised Cost 3 Carrying amount
Profit or loss Other Comprehensive Income

Assets:
Investments (non-current) B(i) - - - -
Other financial Assets (non-current) B(v) 2,385.68 - - 2,385.68
Investments (current) 6(i) - 145,82 - 145.92
Trade receivables 6(if) 1,170.59 - - 1,170.59
Cash and cash equivalents B} 842.96 - - B842.96
Bank balances other than Cash and cash equiva 6{iv) 1,687.75 - - 1,687.75
Other financial Assels (current) 6(v) 2,293.56 - - 2,293.56
Total 8,380.54 145,92 - 8,526.46
Liabilities:
Lease Liabifties {(non-current) 30 84575 - - 845,75
Borrowings (current) 12(i) 2,132.75 - - 2,132.75
Lease Liabilities (current) 30 180.65 - - 180.65
Trade Payables 12(ii) 2,020.24 - - 2,020.24
Other Financial Liabilities 12(jii) 1,178.22 - - 1,178.22
Total 6,358.61 - - 6,358.61

The carrying value and fair value of financial instruments by calegories as of March 31, 2023 were as follows:

Financial assets/liabilities at fair value through

Particulars Note No. Amortised Cost Carrying amount
Profit or loss Other Comprehensive Income

Assets:

Investments (nen-current) B(i) - - 46.98 46.98
Other financial Assets (non-current) 6{v) 543,21 - - 543,24
Investments (current) 6(1) = 208.18 - 208.19
Trade receivables (i) 807.52 - - 907.52
Cash and cash equivalents B(ii) 855.94 - = 855.94
Bank balances other than Cash and cash equiva B(iv) 78.15 - - 78.15
Other financial Assets (current) 6{v) 7,373.68 - - 7.373.68
Total 9,759.49 208.19 46.98 10,014.67
Liabilities:

Lease Liabilities (non-current} 30 814,78 - - 814.78
Borrowings (current) 12() 1,718.08 - - 1,718.08
Lease Liabilities (current) 30 180,06 - - 180.06
Trade Payables 12(ii) 1,988.39 - = 1,988.39
Other Financial Liabilities 12(iif) 1.062.74 - - 1.082.74
Total 5,764.04 - - 5,764.04

The following methods/assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:

The management assessed that cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, irade payables, bank overdrafts and other current liabilifies approximate their
carrying amounts largely due to the short-lerm maturities of these instruments.

The fair value of unquoted instruments, loans from banks and other financial liabililies as well as other non-current financial liabilities is estimated by discounting
future cash flows using rates currently available for debl on similar terms, credit risk and remaining maturities. In addition to being sensitive to a reasonably possible
change in the forecast cash flows or the discount rate, the fair value of the equity instruments is also sensitive to a reasonably possible change in the growth rates,
The valuation requires management to use unobservable inputs in the model, of which the significant unobservable inputs are disclosed in the tables below,

Mar t requiarty arange of reasonably possible alternatives for those significant unobservable inputs and determines their impact on the total fair
value.

The fair values of the unquoted equity shares have been estimated using a DCF model. The valuation requires management to make certain assumptions about the
model inputs, including forecast cash flows, discount rate, credit risk and volatilily. The probabilities of the various estimates within the range can be reasonably
assessed and are used In management’s estimate of fair value for these unquoted equity investments.
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37 Fair value hierarchy

All financial instruments for which fair value is recognised or disclosed are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measuremenl as a whole.

Level 1: This level of hierarchy includes financial assets that are measured by reference to quoted (unadjusted) prices in aclive markets for identical assets or
liabilities.

Level 2: This level of hierarchy includes financial assets that are measured using inputs, other than quoted prices included within level 1, that are observable for such
items, directly or indirectly.

Level 3: This level of hierarchy includes items measured using a valuation model based on assumptions that are neither supported by prices from observable current
markel transactions in the same instruments nor based on available markel data,

Specific valuation lechniques used to value financial instruments is discounted cash flow analysis.
The following table provides the fair value measurement hierarchy of the Group's assets and liabilities:

Fair value measurement hierarchy for financial ts and liabilities as at March 31, 2024;
Financial assets/liabilities at fair value through

Particulars Note No. Amortised Cost Briotiior locs Gifter Compratansive incons Carrying amount
Quoted prices in Significant unobservable
active markets inputs
{Level 1) (Level 3)

Assets:
Investments (non-current) 8(i) - - - -
Other financial Assels {(non-current) B(v) 2,385.68 - - 2,385.68
Investments (current) 6(i) ¥ 145.92 - 145.92
Trade receivables 6(ii) 1,170.59 - - 1,170.59
Cash and cash equivalents B(iii) 842.96 = - 842.96
Bank balances other than Cash and cash equiva Biiv) 1,687.75 - - 1,687.75
Other financial Assets (current) B{v) 2,203.56 - - 2,293.56
Total 8,380.54 145,92 - 8,526.46
Liabilities:
Lease Liabilities (non-current) 30 B45.75 - - 845.75
Borrowings {current) 12{1) 213275 - - 2,132.75
Lease Liatilities (current) 20 180.65 - - 180.65
Trade Payables 12(iiy 2,020.24 - - 2,020.24
Other Financial Liabilities 12(iii) 1,178.22 - - 1,179.22
Total 6,358.61 - - 6,358.61
Fair value ement hierarchy for fi ial assets and liabilities as at March 31, 2023:

Particulars Note No. Amortissd Cost Finan_cial assets/liabilities at fair value_thraugh Gairying amount

Profit or loss Other Comprehensive Income
Quoted prices in Significant unobservable
active markets inputs
{Level 1) {Level 3)

Assets:
Investments (non-current) B(i) - - 46.98 46.98
Other financial Assets (non-current) B(v) 543.21 - - 543.21
Investments (current) B() - 208.19 - 208.19
Trade receivables 6{ii) 907.52 - - 907.52
Cash and cash equivalents 6(ii) 855.94 - - B855.94
Bank balances other than Cash and cash equiva B{iv) 79.15 - - 79.15
Other financial Assets (current) B(v) 7.373.68 - - 7.373.68
Total 9,759.49 208.19 46.98 10,014.67
Liabilities:
Lease Liabilities (non-current) a0 814.78 - - B814.78
Borrowings (current) 12(0) 1.718.08 - - 1,718.08
Lease Liabilities {current) 30 180.06 - - 180.06
Trade Payables 12iiy 1,888.39 - - 1,888.39
Other Financial Liabilities 12{ii) 1,062.74 - - 1.062.74

Total 5,764.04 - - 5,764.04
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Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurement is as follows:

As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Balance at the beginning of the year 46.98 39.20
Addition during the year 5.99 62.54
Fair value (loss)/gain on financial instruments at fair value through Other Comprehensive Income (52.88) (54,75)
Balance at the end of the year - 46,98

As of March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023, the fair value of cash and bank balances, trade receivables, other financial assets and liabilities, borrowings, lease
liabilities, trade payables approximate their carrying amount largely due to the nature of these instruments.

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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38 Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies

(a

(b)

(i)

(i)

(b

The Group's activities are exposed to variety of financial risk, credil risk, liquidity nisk and foreign currency risk. The Group's senior management oversees the
management of these risks. The Group’'s senior management ensures thal the Group's financial risk activities are governed by appropriate policies and
procedures and that financial risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance with the Group's policies and risk objectives, The Group reviews and
agrees on policies for managing each of these risks which are summarized below:

Market Risk

Market risk is the nisk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises
three lypes of risk: interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk, such as equity price risk and commadity risk. Financial instruments affected by market
nsk include loans and borrowings, deposits, debt and equity investments and derivative financial instruments.

The sensitivily analyses in the following sections relate to the position as at March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023,

The analyses exclude the impact of movements in market variables on the carrying values of gratuity and other post-retirement obligations; provisions; and the
nen-financial assels and liabilities of foreign operations.

The following assumptions have been made in calculating the sensitivity analyses:
- The sensitivity of the relevant profit or loss item is the effect of the assumed changes in respective market risks. This is based on the financial assets and
financial liabilities held at March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023,

(i) Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in markel interest rates, As majority
of the financial assets and liabilities of The Group are either non-interest bearing or fixed interest bearing instruments, The Group's net exposure to interest risk
is negligible.

(i) Foreign Currency Risk

The fluctuation in foreign currency exchange rates may have potential impact on the statement of profit or loss, whare any transaction references more than
one cumency or where assetsfiabilities are denominaled in a currency other than the functional currency of the company. The Group undertakes transactions
denominated in foreign currencies and thus it is exposed to exchange rate fluctuations. The Group has a treasury team which evaluates the impact of foreign
exchange rate fluctuations by assessing its exposure to exchange rate risks and advises the mar t of any material adverse effect on the Group. The
Group's net exposure to foreign currency risk is negligible.

(iii) Equity Risk

The Group's listed and non-listed equity securities are susceplible to market price risk arising from uncertainties about future values of the investment
securities. The Group manages the equity price risk through diversification and by placing limits on individual and total equity instruments. Reports on the
equity portiolio are submilted to The Group's senior managemenl on a regular basis, The Group's Board of Directors reviews and approves all equity
investment decisions.

Credit risk
Credit risk is he risk that a counter party will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer conlract, leading to a financial loss. The Group is
exposed to credil risk from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables), including deposits with banks and financial inslitutions, foreign exchange

transactions and other financial instruments,

Trade receivables
Trade receivables are typically unsecured. Credit risk is managed by The Group through credit approvals, establishing credit limits and continuously monitoring
the creditworthiness of customers to which the Group grants credit terms in the normal course of business.

The ageing analysis of trade receivables as of the reporting date is as follows:

Less than 6 6 months -1

Particulars WERtE year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
As at March 31, 2024 1,170.59 28072 176.78 - - 1,628.09
As at March 31, 2023 1,006.42 31277 134.57 5.22 - 1,458.98
" The ageing of trade receivables does nol include expected credit loss,
Expected credit loss for trade receivables using simplified approach As at

iy March 31, 2023

March 31, 2024 (restated?)

Gross carnying amount 1,628.09 1,458.98
Expected credit losses (Loss allowance provision) (457.49) (551.46)
Carrying t of trade ivables (net of impai t) 1,170.59 907.52

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk thal the Group may not be able to meet its present and future cash and collateral obligations without incurring unacceptable losses. The
Group’s objeclive is to, at all times maintain optimum levels of liguidity to meet its cash and collateral requirements, The Group closely monitors its liquidity
position and deploys a robust cash management system. It maintains adequate sources of financing including loans from banks at an optimised cost.

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities based on contractual payments:

As at March 31, 2024 Carrying On Demand Upto 1 Year More than 1 year Total

Bomrowings 213275 213275 - - 2,132.75
Lease Liabilities 1,026.38 - 180.65 845.75 1,026.39
Trade payables 2,020.24 - 2,020.24 - 2,020.24
Other financial liabilities 1,179.22 - 1,179.22 - 1,179.22
Total 6,358.61 2,132.75 3,380.11 845.75 6,358.61
As at March 31, 2023 Carrying amount  On D i Upto 1 Year More than 1 year Total

Borrowings 1,718.08 1,718.08 - - 1,718.08
Lease Liabilities 954 .84 180.06 814.78 994.84
Trade payables 1,888.39 1,985.93 2.46 1,888.38
Other financial liabilities 1,062.74 - 1,062.74 - 1,062.74

Total 5,764.04 1,718.08 3,228.72 817.24
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398 Capital Management
For the purpose of the group's capital management, capital Includes issued equity capital, Instruments entirely equity in nature, securities premium and all other equity reserves attributable to the
equity holders of the group. The primary objective of the group’s capital management is to maximise the shareholder value.
The group’s objectives when managing capital are to
+ Bafeguard their ability to conlinue as a going concern, so that they can continue to provide retumns for shareholders and benefits for other t
» Maintain an opfimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.
The group monitors capital by regularly reviewing the capital structure. As & part of this review, The group monitors capital using & gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus net

; and

debt. The group includes within net debt, interest bearing loans, lease liabilities and borrowings, less cash and cash equivalents and liquid |

= As at As at
Fidicaliars Mpte March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Berrowings 12(i) 2,132.75 1.718.08
Lease Liabilities 30 1,026.39 994.84
Less: Cash and cash equivalents (it} (842.36) (855.94)
Less: Investment in mutual funds B{i) (145.92) (208.19)
Less: Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 8liv) (1.687.75) (79.15)
Net Debt (A} 482.52 1,569.64
Eguity Share Capital 10 582.44 589.95
Share Consideration pursuant to Merger 41 - 01z
Other equity 114} 12.279.33 16,428.81
Total Equity attributable to the equity holders of the group |B) 12,861.77 17,018.89
Capital and net debt ( C} 13,344,289 18,588.53
Capital Gearing Ratio (%) [C/A) 3.62% 8.44%

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Group’s capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that it meets finsncial covenants attached fo the interest-bearing loans and
borrowings that define capital structure requirements, Breaches in meeting the financial covenants would permit the bank to immediately call loans and borrowings. There have been ne breaches in
the financial covenants of any interest-bearing loans and borrowing in the current period.

Mo changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023,

{This space has been intentionally left blank)
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{All amounts in Rs. Millions, unless otherwise stated)

40A Acquisition during the previous year ended March 31, 2023

U}

Acquisition of Pickrr Technologies Private Limited

In the month of June 2022, Bigfoot Retail Solutions Private Limited ("Shiprocket") entered into Share Purchase Agreement (SPA) and other transaction documents
with Pickrr Technologies Private Limited ("Pickrr") and acquired 80.78% of the issued share capital of Pickrr for a consideration of Rs. 9,081.36 millicns.
Subsequently, Shiprocket acquired 9.37% of the issued share capital of Pickrr for a consideration of Rs. 981.78 millions during the same financial year through
acquisition of Non-controlling interests and same has been accounted for in accordance with Ind AS 103 - 'Business Combinations’,

The group concluded Purchase Price Allocation (‘PPA”) of the purchase consideration paid to the shareholders of Pickrr and recognised intangible assets of Rs.
1,335.46 millions and balance as goodwill of Rs. 8,053.80 millions in accordance with Ind AS 103 - ‘Business Combinations’.

The assets and liabilities recognised as on June 30, 2022 as a result of the acquisition are as follows:

Particulars Amount
Property, plant and equipment 24.21
Right-of-use assets 29,84
Other non-current financial assets 6,07
Current Investments 155.11
Trade receivables 234.69
Cash and cash equivalents 9777
Other bank balances 54,81
Other current financial assets 343.42
Other current assets 67.94
Current tax assets (net) 2870
Mon-current Lease Liabilities (12.08)
Non-current provisions (12.84)
Current Lease Liabilities (18.01)
Trade payables (608.29)
Other Current Financial Liabilities {320.01)
Other current liabilities (111.22)
Current Provisions (10.17)
Net identifiable assets acquired (A) {51.09)
Intanghbile assets recognised pursuant to PPA

Customer relationships 845.23
Technology platforms 399.98
Non-Compete fees 80.25
Total Intangible assets recognised {B) 1,335.46
Total Net Identifiable Assets acquired (C=A+B) 1,284.37
Calculation of Goodwill

Stake acquired in Pickrr as on date of acqusition 80.78%
Purchase consideration as per SPA (D) 9.091.36
Non-controlling interest as at date of acquisition (E) 246.81
Less: Total Net Identifiable Assets acquired (F) 1,284.37
Gooduwill to be recognised (G=D+E-F) 8,053.80
Calculation of Acquisition of Non-controlling Interest subsequent to the initial acquisition during the financial year ended March 31, 2023:

Stake acquired in Pickrr subsequent to the date of acqusition till March 31, 2023 9.37%
Purchase consideration as per SPA (H) 981.78
Less: Value of Non-controlling interest acquired (1) 56.54
Loss on Acquisition of Non-controlling Interest {J=H-l) 926.24

During the year ended March 31, 2024, the board of directors of the Holding Company, in the meeting held on August 28, 2023 has approved a composite scheme
of arrangements under section 230 to 232 and other applicable provision of the Companies Act 2013 between the Hoelding company ("Transferee Company"} and
Pickrr Technologies Private Limited ("Transferor Company"), a subsidiary of the Holding company and their respective shareholders and creditors ("Scheme"). The
scheme inter-alia provides for the Share entitlement ratio for the proposed demerger being 48,267 (Forty-Eight Thousand Two Hundred and Sixty-Seven) Non-
Convertible Redeemable Preference Shares of Transferee Company having face value of INR 100 each fully paid up shall be issued for every 10 (Ten) equity
shares held in Transferor Company having face value of INR 10 each fully paid up.

On July 15, 2024, the National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT), New Delhi Bench sanctioned/ approved the Composite Scheme of Arrangement, which was made
sffective on August 1, 2024 upon filing of the certified copies of the NCLT Orders sanctioning the Scheme with the respective jurisdictional Registrar of Companies.
Pursuant to the Scheme becoming effective, the Last mile business of Pickrr Technologies Private Limited (‘Demerged Undertaking") is demerged from Pickrr
Technologies Private Limited and transferred to and vested in the Holding company with effect from April 1, 2023 i.e. the Appointed Date as per Scheme, The
transactions pertaining to the Demerged Undertaking of Pickrr Technologies Private Limited from the appointed date up to the effective date of the Scheme have
been made by Transferor Company on behalf of Transferee Company as per the Scheme. As on the date of NCLT approval for the demerger, the Holding
company helds 100% of the issued share capital of the Transferor company and therefore, there are no Non-Convertible Redeemable Preference Shares of
Transferee Company that needs to be issued pursuant to the order of approval of the said composite scheme of arrangement by NCLT.

These transactions have been treated as business combination and the Holding Company has applied pooling of interest method to account for such business
combination in its standalone financial statements. Based on the requirements of Appendix C to Ind AS - 103, the Company has restated financial information
appearing in these financial statements in respect of previous period as if business combination had occurred from the actual date of the combination in Transferor
company i.e. June 30, 2022 in the standalone financial statements. These transactions have no impact on the consolidated financial statements of the Group as at
March 31, 2024. ¥ .
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(i)

(iii)

Acquisition of Shiprocket Omuni Private Limited {formerly Arvind Internet Limited)

In the month of October 2022, Shiprocket Private Limited (formerdy known as "Bigfoot Retail Solutions Private Limited") entered into Share Purchase Agreement
(SPA) and other transaction documents with Shiprocket Omuni Private Limited (formerly Arvind Internet Limited)("Omuni®) and acquired 100% of the issued share
capital of Omuni for a consideration of Rs. 190.60 millions.

The group concluded Purchase Price Allccation ("PPA") of the purchase consideration paid to the shareholders of Omuni and recognised goodwill of Rs. 324,90
million in accordance with Ind AS 103 - ‘Business Combinations',

The ts and liabilities recognised as on October 31, 2022 as a result of the acquisition are as follows:

Particulars Amount
Property, plant and equipment 19.56
Right-of-use assets 67.46
Goodwill 1,443.08
Other Intangible assets 99.88
Other non-current financial assets 6.71
Trade receivables 64.87
Cash and cash equivalents 93.47
Other current financial assets 1.62
Other current assets 7.85
Current tax assets (net) 1.48
Non-current Lease Liabilities (56.34)
Non-current provisions (5.99)
Current Lease Liabilities (11.26)
Trade payables (66.42)
Other Current Financial Liabilities (79.43)
Other current liabilities (5.40)
Current Provisions -
Net identifiable assets acquired (A) 1,681.14
Calculation of Goodwill

Stake acquired as on date of acqusition 100.00%
Purchase consideration as per SPA (B) 1,906.04
Less: Total Net ldentifiable Assets acquired (C) 1,581.14
Goodwill to be recognised (D=B-C) 324.90

Acquisition of Wigzo Technologies Private Limited

In the month of December 2021, Shiprocket Private Limited (formerly known as "Bigfoot Retail Solutions Private Limited") entered into Share Purchase Agreement
(SPA) and other transaction documents with Wigzo Technologies Private Limited (“Wigzo") and acquired 76.65% of the issued share capital of Wigzo for a
consideration of Rs. 689.98 million. Subsequently, Shiprocket acquired 2,61% of the issued share capital of Wigzo for a consideration of Rs. 160,02 million during
the financial year ended March 31, 2023 through infusion of share capital in Wigzo which resulted in dilution of Non-controlling interests and same had been
accounted for in accordance with Ind AS 103 - 'Business Combinations'.

The group concluded Purchase Price Allocation ("PPA”) of the purchase consideration paid to the shareholders of Wigzo and recognised intangible assets of Rs.
68.38 million and balance as goodwill of Rs. 521.01 million in accordance with Ind AS 103 - 'Business Combinations'.

The assets and liabilities recognised as on December 31, 2021 as a result of the acquisition are as follows:

Particulars Amount
Property, plant and equipment 0.58
Trade receivables 13,02
Cash and cash equivalents 146.43
Other current financial assets 1.08
Other current assets 23.54
Current tax assets (net) 1.80
Non-current provisions (2.08)
Short Term Borrowings (0.02)
Trade payables (25.52)
Other Current Financial Liabilities (4.08)
Other current liabilities (2.69)
Current Provisions (0.03)
Net identifiable assets acquired (A) 152.05
Intanghbile assets recognised pursuant to PPA

Customer relationships 2147
Technology platforms 31.38
Nen-Compete fees 15.83
Total Intangible assets recognised (B) 68.38

Total Net Identifiable Assets acquired (C=A+B) 220.43
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Calculation of Goodwill

Stake acquired as on date of acqusition 75.66%
Purchase consideration as per SPA (D) 689.97

Nen-controlling interest as at date of acquisition (E) 51.47

Less: Total Net Identifiable Assets acquired (F) 220.43

Goodwill to be recognised (G=D+E-F) 521.01

Calculation of Acquisition of Non-controlling Interest subsequent to the initial acquisition during the financial year ended March 31, 2023:

Stake acquired in Wigzo subsequent to the date of acqusition during the year ended March 31, 2023 2.61%
Amount of share capital infused in Wigzo (H) 160.02
Value of Non-controlling interest diluted (1) a7a1

Loss on Acquisition of Non-controlling Interest (J=1) 37.11
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Shiprocket Private Limited (Formerly known as Bigfoot Retail Solutions Private Limited)
CIN: U72900DL2011PTC225614

Notes to Consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 2024

{All amounts in Rs. Millions, unl otherwise stated)

41 Business Combination during the previous year ended March 31, 2023

The Board of Direclors of the Holding Company of the group, in its meeting held on March 13, 2022 had approved a Scheme of Arrangement in the nature of merger under
section 230 to 240 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act 2013 between the Holding Company (“Transferee Company”) and Glaucus Supply Chain Solutions
Private Limited (“Transferor Company"), a subsidiary of the Company and their respective shareholders and creditors ("Scheme"). On May 30, 2022 the Holding Company filed

the scheme with Hon'ble Delhi bench of National Company Law Tribunal ("NCLT"). The Appointed Date for the Scheme is April 1, 2022,

The NCLT approved the Scheme via an order dated April 28, 2023. In accordance with the Scheme, Glaucus Supply Chain Solutions Private Limited ("Transferor Company”)

has been merged with Bigfoot Retail Solutions Private Limited, the Holding Company, effective from April 1, 2022.

During the year ended March 31, 2023, These transactions had been treated as business combination and the Group had applied pooling of interest method to account for

such business combinalion based on the requirements of Appendix C to Ind AS - 103,

The details of Fair Value of assets and liabilities acquired of the Transferor company as on February 10, 2022 has been provided below:

Particulars Amount
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 32.28
Other Intangible assets 121.49
Right-of-use assets 149.43
Financial assets
(i) Other financial assels 14.45
Mon-current Tax Assets (net) 16,92
Total non-current assets 334.57
Current assets
Inventories 5.87
Financial assets
(i) Investments 54.63
(i} Trade receivables 84.44
(iii} Cash and cash equivalents 58.76
(iv) Bank balances other than (jii) above 0,14
(v) Other financial Assels 28.24
Other current assets 5.76
Total current assets 237.84
Total assets (A} 572.41
LIABILITES
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
{i) Lease Liabifities 110.54
Deferred tax liability 0.80
Provisions 2.63
Total non-current liabilities 113.97
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
(i) Lease Liabilities 43.20
(i) Trade payables 88.15
(iii) Other Financial Liabilities 151.82
Provisions 0.54
Other current liabilities 10.49
Total current liabilities 294.20
Total liabilities (B) 408.17
Net Assets taken over C=(A-B) 164.24
Purchase Consideration paid
-Paid 1o Exit Stakeholders 690.21
- Additional Capital Infusion 51.68
Share Consideration pursuant to merger (shares issued to Shareholders in
accordance with share exchange ratio as per scheme approved with NCLT, 0.12
the same has been allotted on August 14, 2023)
Total Consideration (D) 742.01
Goodwill Recognised {D-C) 577.77




Shiprocket Private Limited (Formerly known as Bigfoot Retail Soluti Private Limited)
CIN: U72900DL2011PTC225614

Notes to Standal fi ial ts for the year ended March 2024

{All amounts in Rs. Millions, unless otherwise stated)

41A  Loss of control in Swiftly Commerce Tech Private Limited (formerly known as Wigzo Technologies Private Limited)

During the year ended March 31, 2024, the board of directors of the Holding company, as a part of internal restructuring in the meeting held on August 28, 2023 had approved a
Scheme of Arrangement of the Holding company's (' Transferee Company”} plans to acquire the technology based platform sclution from Swiflly Cormmerce Tach Private Limited
{formerly known as Wigze Technologies Private Limited) ("Transferor Company"), a subsidiary of the company on going concern basis by way of a Slump Sale for a lump sum
consideration, in compliance with the provisions of Section 508 read with Section 2{42C) of the Income Tax Act, 1851,

Furiher, subsequent to the scheme of arrangement, the Holding company with effect from September 1, 2023 decided to sl its stake in Swiftly Commerce Tech Private Limited
{formerly known as Wigzo Technologies Private Limited) through sale of 27,436 shares held in the said entity for a nominal consideration of Rs. 10/- per share.

Breakup of Profit/{loss) pertaining to loss of control as at September 1, 2023 in Swiftly Commerce Tech Private Limited (formerly known as Wigzoe Technologies
Private Limited) has been provided below:

Particulars Septemt: : , 2023
Nel Assetsi{Liabililies) as on date of Loss of control [I] (74.94)
Walue of Non Controlling Interest Liability to be written back [II] (17.12)
Profit en sale of Investment in subsidiary [I11] {0.27)
Profiti{Loss) on loss on control in subsidiaries [I+11+111] (92.34)

(This space has been intentionally left blank)




Shiprocket Private Limited (Formerly known as Bigfoot Retail Solutions Private Limited)
CIN: U729000L2011PTC225614

MNotes to C

42 Ratio Analysis and its elements

for the year ended March 2024

(All amounts in Rs. s, unless otherwise stated)

Asatl Hsa
Ratio ysis and its 31 March 2024 31 March 2?23 % Change Remarks
(restated*)
Change is on account of decrease in current
e assels dunng the year ended March 31, 2024
{z)  Cuwrrent ratio Current asseis Curent habilibes 1.14 1.60 -32.49% a3 Fixed Deposits have been reinvestad for
mare than 1 year,
Increased due to short lerm borrowings taken
{b)  Debt-equity ratio Total Debt Shareholder's Equity 025 0.16 54,52%|during the year against FO's as per FD-OD
facllity,
{Loss)Eamings for debt
service = Net Debt service = Interest c
(c) Debt service ge ratio loss)iprofit after taxes +|4 Lease Payments + (©0.13) (3.04) 25.80% m’;:"dﬁ:’:;'w"i:;”zi';'f;;:::u’:’”m n
Non-cash ing Principal Reg .
expenses
i} Inventory tumover ratio Cosl of goods sold Average Inventory 3.95 324 Z2.04%
Met credil sales = Gross Kidtage Tratle ‘Change is on account of increased revenus
{e}  Trade receivables turmover ratin | credit sales - sales. R“E.E bz 2533 15.82 50.14%|from customers having credit ferms during the
retum o normal course of business
Met credit purchases = e e Change is on account of change in the credits
i{fy  Trade payables turnover ratio Grogs credit purchases 4 P“;'Qﬁ 11.45 B.83 &7.51%from the suppliers dudng the normal course of
{pwchase refurn i
z F Change is on account of decrease in current
Working capital = 2
- Met sales = Total sales - assels dunng the year ended March 31, 2024,
{9} Met capdtal tumover ratio salos rtii g:renl ]as:'elli - 1377 2.86 418.22%) Further revenue has increased as compared to
HEHHRESTIES year ended March 31, 2023,
) Retum on eauity ratio gf&g“’“w'““" Sley ;":i”g" » (0.40) (©.24) £9.38%)
e (ABERE
i Net sales = Total sales
0 Metpestt il Nl {Loss)/Profit - sales returmn {0.48) (0.34) ~25.26% Reduced due to losses incurred during the
Cagpital Employed = year,
. (Loss)Eamings before | Tangible MNat Worth +
B s alemilaed intarast and taxes Total Debt + Deferred 1038 A5 “ABRR
Taw Liakil
s Increase is on account of Increase (n ylald rate
{k}  Return on investmeant i Bank Deposils 0,06 004 60.21%}on account of Increase in inferest rate on year
deposits with banks o yaar bsis,
Trade Receivables Met
(I} Days Sales Outstanding of Wallet + Unbilled g:‘:;:‘;'s‘” 28.58 28.27 1.07%
Revenue
Cost of Merchant
solutions + Cost of
{m)  Days Purchases Oustanding Trade Payable treded Goods+ Other 64.31 652.01 2.22%
expense (net of pon-
cash expenses)
Revenue from
Trade Receivables Net |Operations - (Cost of
; of Wallet + Unbilled Merchant solutions «
{n Cash Conversion cycle ReuEnie - Trade Cosk of fraded Goadss (36.73) (34.64) =3.16%
Payabia Other expensa(net of
|non-cash expenses))

“Ratios vanances have been explained for any change by more than 25% as compared to the previous year,

(This space has been infentionally left blank)




Shiprocket Private Limited (Formerly known as Bigfoot Retail Solutions Private Limited)
CIN: U72300DLZ011PTC225614
Motes to Ci i fii il for the year ended March 2024

{All ameunts in Rs, Millions, unless otherwise stated)

43{a) Other Statutory Information

45

i) The: Group does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been iniliated or pending against The Group for holding any Benami praperty under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1888
and rufes made thereunder.

if) The Group has outstanding balances with the below-mentionad companies struck off under section 248 of Companies Act, 2013

Mature of transaclions Balance outstanding
Name of strick off Company with struck-off
Company As at March 31, 2024] As at March 31, 2023

Famham Enterprises Pyt Ltd, Kundan Power Products Pvt. Ltd., ABPX Pharma Pvi. Lid., Medi Pearls, Painl fashion pvt Hd, Hardea
|Enterprises Private Limited, lution Digital Marketing Pt Ltd, DLB Group India Limited, Quidditas Farms Private Limited, Mynics!
Tachnologies Pyt Lid,, Direct Media Shoppy, P.K, Enderprises, Nearking India Put, Lid, Routeget Technologies Pyl, Lid., Rushi herbal,
RD Overseas, Fabrify Studio Private Limited. Gllbard Apparel Pyt Ltd, Maya Jenaifer Teas (Pvt) Ltd, DLE GROUP INDIA Limited, Studio
Gulaal, ltan Tech India Pt Lid, Jindal Brother, Dallin Just2Fun Pyt Ltd, Darshan Entery GXAC | ive Technologies Pvt. Lid,
Anandha Van|i Enterf Pyt. Ltd, Biokhemiks, Varad: Silks, Folds Pyt Lid,, Winotonian Shoes Py, Lid, Zeroza E-
Commurce Private Limiled, Osiya Technologies, Encephalon IT Services, Vape empirs india private limited, 2{ambs India Opc Private|
Limited, Excel Rasayan Private Limited, Emirate Fashions Pyt Lid, Thulaam Solutions, Dhiganth Retail Put, Ltd, Recham Online Services
Pt Ltd, Madskull Online Private Limitad, Axios clothing pvt I'd, GB Online Put, Ltd,, Brew Brothers Py, lid., Laly Baby Cleth Diapers Pyj
Ltd, Stormlight Technelogies Pvt. Lid., Jacked To Play, Elegantec! (DPC) Private Limited, D18 Foods & Beverages Put Lid, Alrfiber
Technologies Private Limited, ARSH Wardrobes Pyt Lid, House Of Paws Pyt Ltd., Oopla E-Commerce Pyl Lid,, Procrafis Online Pyt Lid,
Viser Digitech Pul. Lid., Tectotren Private Limited, Viatrix Retails Pyt Lid, Pencilboxshop, Relyan T logies Pyt Ltd, XPO Business,| Customer Balance in
SKAY EMCO Toals India Pvt, Ltd., Sharma Reliant Put. Lid,, Umale Enterprises India Private Limited, BangKart InfoSenvices Put Lid, Wallet
Cosmus bags privale limited Bigfalcon web services private limited Health gadgels private limited Getcured apothecary privale
limited,Diviam ipa intermational pavatelimited Ready2walk india private limited,Ganga fashions private limited Atzellife care private
limited Pip production & matketing {opc) pavate limited Galden bricks private Bmited fpsel entertainment private limited, Opexworks
i private limited Spacecom worldwide private Bmited, Ganga fashions private limited Green handie products private lmited Vital
care private imited, fAxomi handlooms (opc) private Bmited, Bookmyautfit online private mited, Public clothing private limited, Tannu Info
services private fimited, Hey martina retatl private limited, Twenty four spoke prvate limited, Saartha living private limited, Kat thread|
private Imited, Beslrong ventures private limited, Kledings fashion private limiled, Plc clothing private kmited, Plexusplus zone private]
limited, Skylark express (delhi) privale Bmited, Matangi polymers and products private kmited. Swinging tales graphic studio (opc) private]
Emited, Technistar india private limited, Fashion cottage private mited, Viro hub prvate limited, Heed publications private bimited, Spg
india private limited, Indigene emarket private [mited, Globalsoft technologies prvate limited, Akar limited,

0.01 0.08

Adventium Busi futions pyt Iid, Roflie Lifestyle Pul, Lid,, Shrutishreya Publications and Buobe Infosystern Pui Lid. Trade Receivables 0.00 G.00

fiil) The Group does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registerad with ROC beyond the statutory periad,

iv} The Group have not traded or invested in Crypio currency of Vidusl Currency during the financial year,

) The Group have not advanced or loaned or invested funds Lo any ulher person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities | ies) with the ding that the j iary shall:
a) direclly or indirectly lend erinvest in other persons or enfiies identified In any manner whalsoever Iy or on behall of The Group (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
b} provide any guarantes, secunty or the bke to or on beball of the Ultimate Beneficiates.

vi} The Group have not received any fund lrom any person(s) ar enlity(ies), including foreign entilies (Funding Party) with the und g {whether dud in witing or ctherwise) that the Company shall ;
a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in alher persons or entities identified in any manner whatscever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ulimate Beneficiates) or
b) provide any guarantee, security or the fike to or on behalf of the Ulimate Benefidaries,

vii) The Group does nat have any such ransaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax
Act, 1851 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1851,

vili) The Group have not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank of financial institution or g for any g
ix) The Group have not revalired ils Propery, Plant and Equipment and Intangible assels during the year ended March 31, 2024,

¥} The Code on Social Security, 2020 ('Code') relaling to employes benefits during employment and post. il benefits ived Presidential assent in 5 ber 2020, However, the date on which the
Code will come inlp effect has not been nolified, The Group will assess the impact of the Code when it comes into effect and will record any relaled impact in the peried when the Code becomes effactive,

The Helding Company and ils subsidiaries which ara incorp din India and whese financial statements have been audited under the Act has maintained proper books of account as required by law
except for the August22 MCA notification first year for which the company is implementing wherein it does not have servers physically located in Indla for the daily backup in relation to s accounting softwars.
Hawever, the Helding Company have backups of its inveicing software on servers maintained in India, Further, subsequent to the year-end, the Holding cotnpany is in the process of eslablishing mechanism for
laking daily back-up of its accounting software in a server physically located in India.

The Holding Company and its idiaries which are panies i P 4 in Indla and whese financial statements have been audited under the Act (other than one of its subsidiaries Pickr Technologies
Private Limited) has used Cracle Netsuile as its software for mail g its books of account for the year ended March 31, 2024 which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) and the same has
operated throughout the year for all relevant t: i in the soity af apgli level except for logs of cerain atir of deleted t ions and logs of changes made at ini level (i
any}. Since, the company uses a third parly accounting software in which the database is maintained by fhe service pravider, the management is unable lo conwnent whether audit trall feature at the database
level was enabled and operated threughout the year for all relevant g ded in the software, Also, audit trad for accounting and cerlain reiated software was not enabled af the database level to log
any direct changes 1o the database, Further, no instance of audit trail feature being tampered with was noted in respect of accounting software whera the audit frail has been enabled,

Pickrr Technelogies Private Limited has used accounting software Tally for maintaining its books of account which does not have the feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility in the software,

(This space has been infentionally left blank)




Shiprocket Private Limited (Formerfy known as Bigfoot Retail Solutions Private Limited}
CIN: UT28000L2011PTC225614
MNetes to C fidated fi il for the year ended March 2024

(All amounts in Rs. Millions, unless otherwise stated)

46 There are numercus interpretative jssues relating to the Supreme Court (SC) judgement on Provident Fund dated February 28, 2019. The Group is almady ih compliance with sald arder for the year. Howaver,
there is uncerainty on the determination of the lizbility retrospectively, because th fically there is no Bmil on how much retrospective It can get, and can beqin from the commencement of operations of the
group. The Group will only recard a provision, on receiving further clarity on the subject,

47 Previous years figures have been { rec 1 ¥ lo confirm lo curent year's classification,

As per our report of even dale %
For 5.R, Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
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